AMG & Associates, LLC Alamo Street Mixed Use Project

Air Quality & Greenhouse Gas Study

Planners

Engineers

June 2018

rincon

Environmental Scientists

AIR QUALITY & GREENHOUSE GAS STUDY

ALAMO STREET MIXED USE PROJECT

Prepared for:

AMG & Associates, LLC 16633 Ventura Boulevard, Suite 1014 Encino, CA 91436

Prepared by:

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 180 North Ashwood Avenue Ventura, California 93003

June 2018

This page intentionally left blank.

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project Air Quality & Greenhouse Gas Study

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Project Description	1
Air Quality Background	
Local Climate and Meteorology	
Air Quality Regulation	
Current Air Quality	
Air Quality Management Plan	
Sensitive Receptors	
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Background	6
Local Regulations and CEQA Requirements	
Significance Thresholds and Methodology	
Air Quality Thresholds	
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Thresholds	
Air Quality Analysis Methodology	16
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Analysis Methodology	
Impact Analysis	
Air Quality Impacts	
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts	
References	

List of Tables

Table 1 Federal and State Ambient Air Quality Standards	3
Table 2 Ambient Air Quality at the Simi Valley Monitoring Station	
Table 3 Construction Maximum Daily Air Pollutant Emissions (lbs/day)	19
Table 4 Maximum Daily Operational Emissions (lbs/day)	20
Table 5 Estimated Construction Emissions of Greenhouse Gases	
Table 6 Long-Term Annual Emissions of Greenhouse Gases	22
Table 7 Combined Annual Emissions of Greenhouse Gases	22
Table 8 Project Consistency with City of Simi Valley Climate Action Plan	23
Table 9 Project Consistency with Applicable Climate Action Team Greenhouse Gas	
Emission Reduction Strategies	24
5	

Appendix

CalEEMod Summer, Winter, and Annual Results

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Worksheet: N₂O Mobile Emissions

This page intentionally left blank.

ALAMO STREET MIXED USE PROJECT CITY OF SIMI VALLEY AIR QUALITY & GREENHOUSE GAS STUDY

This report is an analysis of the potential air quality and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions impacts of the proposed Alamo Street Mixed Use Project located in Simi Valley, California. The report has been prepared by Rincon Consultants, Inc. under contract to AMG & Associates, LLC, and at the request of the City of Simi Valley for use in support of environmental documentation being prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The purpose of this study is to analyze the project's criteria air pollutant and GHG emissions and the associated impacts to regional air quality and climate change. The analysis herein is based partially on the Traffic Impact Report prepared by LSA Associates, Inc. (2018).

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The project site measures approximately 6.88 acres and is comprised of 1.01 acre commercial parcel and a 5.87 acre residential parcel. The project site is located at the northeast corner of Alamo Street and Tapo Street, south of the Elwood shopping center in the city of Simi Valley. The site is currently occupied by an approximately 78,000 square foot retail center that is primarily vacant.

The project would involve demolition of all of the existing buildings except for one 8,300 square foot commercial building. The project would create three-story residential complexes separated by courtyards with a total of 278 residential units. The project would also include 611 spaces for the residential development and 33 parking spaces for the commercial building.



Figure 1. Project Site Location

AIR QUALITY BACKGROUND

Local Climate and Meteorology

The project site is located in the South Central Coast Air Basin (the Basin) and is under the jurisdiction of the Ventura County Air Pollution Control District (VCAPCD). Air quality in the Basin is affected by the emission sources located in the region, as well as by three natural factors:

- A **natural terrain barrier** to emission dispersion north and east of the metropolitan Los Angeles area.
- A **dominant on-shore flow** transports and disperses air pollution by driving air pollution originating in industrial areas along the coast toward the natural terrain barrier, limiting horizontal dispersion. The effect of this on-shore flow is a gradual degradation of air quality from coastal to inland areas. The greatest impacts can be seen in the San Gabriel Valley and near Riverside at the foot of the San Gabriel Mountains.
- Atmospheric inversions limit dispersion of air pollution on a vertical scale. Temperature typically decreases with altitude. However, under inversion conditions temperature begins to increase at some height above the ground. The temperature increase continues through an unspecified layer after which the temperature change with height returns to standard conditions. The inversion layer is typically very stable and acts as a cap to the vertical dispersions of pollutants.

Air Quality Regulation

Federal and state governments have established ambient air quality standards for the protection of public health. The United State Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) is the federal agency designated to administer air quality regulation, while the Air Resources Board (ARB) is the state equivalent in the California EPA. County-level Air Pollution Control Districts (APCDs) provide local management of air quality. The ARB has established air quality standards and is responsible for the control of mobile emission sources, while the local APCDs are responsible for enforcing standards and regulating stationary sources. The ARB has established 15 air basins statewide.

The USEPA has set primary national ambient air quality standards (NAAQS) for ozone, carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen dioxide (NO₂), sulfur dioxide (SO₂), PM₁₀, PM_{2.5}, and lead (Pb). Primary standards are those levels of air quality deemed necessary, with an adequate margin of safety, to protect public health. In addition, the State of California has established health-based ambient air quality standards for these and other pollutants, some of which are more stringent than the federal standards. Table 1 lists the current federal and state standards for regulated pollutants.

Pollutant	Averaging Time	Federal Primary Standards	California Standard
Ozone	1-Hour		0.09 ppm
Ozone	8-Hour	0.070 ppm	0.070 ppm
Carbon Monoxide	8-Hour	9.0 ppm	9.0 ppm
Carbon Monoxide	1-Hour	35.0 ppm	20.0 ppm
Nitragan Diavida	Annual	0.053 ppm	0.030 ppm
Nitrogen Dioxide	1-Hour	0.10 ppm	0.18 ppm
	Annual		
Sulfur Dioxide	24-Hour	0.14 ppm	0.04 ppm
	1-Hour	0.075 ppm	0.25 ppm
DM	Annual		20 µg/m ³
PM ₁₀	24-Hour	150 μg/m ³	50 μg/m ³
DM	Annual	12 µg/m ³	12 µg/m ³
PM _{2.5}	24-Hour	35 μg/m ³	
Lood	30-Day Average		1.5 μg/m ³
Lead	3-Month Average	0.15 µg/m ³	

 Table 1

 Federal and State Ambient Air Quality Standards

ppm = parts per million; μg/m³ = micrograms per cubic meter Source: ARB. 2016.

The VCAPCD is the local air quality management agency. The local air quality management agency is required to monitor air pollutant levels to ensure that applicable air quality standards are met and, if they are not met, to develop strategies to meet the standards.

Depending on whether or not the standards are met or exceeded, the air basin is classified as being in "attainment" or "nonattainment." The part of the Basin within which the project site is located is in nonattainment for both the federal and state standards for ozone and state standards for particulate matter (PM₁₀) (ARB 2014). Thus, the Basin currently exceeds several state and federal ambient air quality standards and VCAPCD is required to implement strategies to reduce the pollutant levels to recognized acceptable standards. Characteristics of ozone and suspended particulates are described below.

<u>Ozone</u>

Ozone is produced by a photochemical reaction (triggered by sunlight) between nitrogen oxides (NO_X) and reactive organic gases (ROG^1) . NO_X is formed during the combustion of fuels, while reactive organic gases are formed during combustion and evaporation of organic solvents. Because ozone requires sunlight to form, it mostly occurs in substantial concentrations between the months of April and October. Ozone is a pungent, colorless, toxic gas with direct health

¹ Organic compound precursors of ozone are routinely described by a number of variations of three terms: hydrocarbons (HC), organic gases (OG), and organic compounds (OC). These terms are often modified by adjectives such as total, reactive, or volatile, and result in a rather confusing array of acronyms: HC, THC (total hydrocarbons), RHC (reactive hydrocarbons), TOG (total organic gases), ROG (reactive organic gases), TOC (total organic compounds), ROC (reactive organic compounds), and VOC (volatile organic compounds). While most of these differ in some significant way from a chemical perspective, from an air quality perspective two groups are important: non-photochemically reactive in the lower atmosphere, or photochemically reactive in the lower atmosphere (HC, RHC, ROG, ROC, and VOC).

effects on humans, including respiratory and eye irritation and possible changes in lung functions. Groups most sensitive to ozone include children, the elderly, people with respiratory disorders, and people who exercise strenuously outdoors.

Suspended Particulates

Atmospheric particulate matter is comprised of finely divided solids and liquids such as dust, soot, aerosols, fumes, and mists. The particulates that are of particular concern are PM_{10} (which measures no more than 10 microns in diameter) and $PM_{2.5}$ (a fine particulate measuring no more than 2.5 microns in diameter). The characteristics, sources, and potential health effects associated with PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ can be different. Major man-made sources of PM_{10} are agricultural operations, industrial processes, combustion of fossil fuels, construction, demolition operations, and entrainment of road dust into the atmosphere. Natural sources include windblown dust, wildfire smoke, and sea spray salt. The finer, $PM_{2.5}$ particulates are generally associated with combustion processes as well as being formed in the atmosphere as a secondary pollutant through chemical reactions. $PM_{2.5}$ is more likely to penetrate deeply into the lungs and poses a serious health threat to all groups, but particularly to the elderly, children, and those with respiratory problems. More than half of the small and fine particulate matter that is inhaled into the lungs remains there, which can cause permanent lung damage. These materials can damage health by interfering with the body's mechanisms for clearing the respiratory tract or by acting as carriers of an absorbed toxic substance.

Current Air Quality

California's weather is heavily influenced by a semi-permanent high-pressure system west of the Pacific coast. The Mediterranean climate of the region and the coastal influence produce moderate temperatures year round, with rainfall concentrated in the winter months. The sea breeze, which is the predominant wind, is a primary factor in creating this climate and typically flows from the west-southwest in a day-night cycle with speeds generally ranging from 5 to 15 miles per hour.

Data on existing air quality in the Ventura County portion of the South Central Coast Air Basin are available for ozone and particulate matter emissions within the 2014 Ambient Air Monitoring Network Plan. The 2014 Ambient Air Monitoring Network Plan contains data for six monitoring locations throughout Ventura County. The monitoring station located closest to Simi Valley and most representative of air quality at the project site is the Simi Valley Station on the Simi Valley High School campus at 5400 Cochran Street approximately 1.4 miles southeast of the project site. Table 2 summarizes the annual air quality data from 2014 – 2016 in the local airshed for the criteria pollutants of greatest concern in Ventura County.

Amplent All Quality at the Sinn Valley	monitoring		
Pollutant	2014	2015	2016
Ozone, ppm – Worst Hour	0.097	0.096	0.101
Number of days State exceedances (>0.09 ppm)	1	1	1
Ozone, ppm – Worst 8 Hours	0.085	0.078	0.083
Number of days of State exceedances (>0.07 ppm)	15	13	7
Number of days Federal exceedances (>0.07 ppm)	15	13	7
Carbon Monoxide, ppm – Worst 8 Hours	N/A	N/A	N/A
Number of days of State/Federal exceedances (>9.0 ppm)	N/A	N/A	N/A
Nitrogen Dioxide, ppm – Worst Hour	0.047	0.041	0.039
Number of days of State exceedances (>0.18 ppm)	0	0	0
Particulate Matter > 10 microns, ug/m ³ Worst 24 Hours	57.2	62.8	166.1
Estimated Number of Days of State exceedances (>50 μ g/m ³)	1	3	4
Estimated Number of Days of Federal exceedances (>150 μ g/m ³)	0	0	1
Particulate Matter <2.5 microns, µg/m ³ Worst 24 Hours*	30.8	33.0	35.3
Estimated Number of Days of Federal exceedances (>35 $\mu\text{g/m}^3$)	0	0	0

 Table 2

 Ambient Air Quality at the Simi Valley Monitoring Station

N/A = not measured

Source: ARB, 2014, 2015, 2016 Annual Air Quality Data Summaries available at http://www.arb.ca.gov/adam/topfour/topfour1.php Note: California standards for ozone, carbon monoxide, and particulate matter are not to be exceeded. Federal standard for CO not to be exceeded more than once per year. Federal ozone standard is attained when the fourth highest eight hour concentration in a year, averaged over three years, is equal to or less than the standard. For PM₁₀, the 24 hour standard is attained when the expected number of days per calendar year with a 24-hour average concentration above 150 µg/m³ is equal to or less than one. For PM_{2.5}, the 24 hour standard is attained when 98 percent of the daily concentrations, averaged over three years, are equal to or less than the standard.

As shown in Table 2, the ozone concentrations at the Simi Valley Monitoring Station exceeded the one-hour state standard for one day in 2014, 2015, and 2016. The PM₁₀ concentrations exceeded federal standards for one day in 2016 and exceeded State standards for one, three, and four days in 2014, 2015, and-2016 respectively. Information regarding CO concentrations is not available from any of the monitoring stations in the County. Monitoring ceased in 2004 because of the low levels of CO recorded (VCAPCD, 2007)

Air Quality Management Plan

Under state law, the VCAPCD is required to prepare a plan for air quality improvement for pollutants for which the District is in non-compliance. In 2007, VCAPCD adopted an Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) that provides a strategy for the attainment of state and federal air quality standards. As noted previously, Ventura County is not in attainment for the 2008 federal eight-hour ozone standard. The plan for Ventura County to meet the 2008 federal ozone standard, which has a deadline of 2021, is currently in development. While the 2007 AQMP contains some additional local control measures, most of the emissions reductions that Ventura County needs to attain the federal eight hour ozone standard and continue progress to the state ozone standard will come from the ARB's 2007 State Implementation Plan (SIP) and 2009 Reasonably Available Control Technology State Implementation Plan (2009 RACT SIP). These SIPs contain comprehensive emission reduction programs that focus on reducing

emissions from mobile sources, consumer products, and pesticides to substantially improve air quality.

The 2007 AQMP also presents the 2003 – 2005 Triennial Assessment and Plan Update required by the California Clean Air Act (CCAA). The goal of the CCAA is to achieve more stringent health-based state air quality standards at the earliest practicable date. Ventura County is designated a severe non-attainment area under the CCAA and must meet many of the most stringent requirements under this Act.

Sensitive Receptors

Ambient air quality standards have been established to represent the levels of air quality considered sufficient, with an adequate margin of safety, to protect public health and welfare. They are designed to protect that segment of the public most susceptible to respiratory distress, such as children under 14; the elderly over 65; persons engaged in strenuous work or exercise; and people with cardiovascular and chronic respiratory diseases. The majority of sensitive receptor locations are, therefore, schools and hospitals.

The project site is located at the northeast corner of Tapo Street and Alamo Street in a residential area of Simi Valley. Sensitive receptors near the project site include residences immediately adjacent to the project site to the north and east, and residences located across Tapo and Alamo Streets to the south and west. In addition, the project includes residential uses, which would be sensitive receptors after project construction is complete.

The ARB currently recommends that local agencies avoid siting new sensitive land uses within 500 feet of freeways or high-volume roadways (ARB 2005). The primary concern is the long-term effect of diesel exhaust particulates, a toxic air contaminant, on sensitive uses. The primary sources of diesel exhaust particulates in the project vicinity are vehicles traveling along Alamo Street and Tapo Street. Alamo Street from Tapo Canyon Road to Tapo Street has a volume of 17,800 average daily trips and Tapo Street from Alamo Street to Cochran Street has a volume of 11,700 average daily trips (Atkins, 2012). These roadways are therefore considered high volume roadways which produce pollutants near the project site.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS BACKGROUND

Climate change is the observed increase in the average temperature of the Earth's atmosphere and oceans along with other substantial changes in climate (such as wind patterns, precipitation, and storms) over an extended period of time. The term "climate change" is often used interchangeably with the term "global warming," but "climate change" is preferred to "global warming" because it helps convey that there are other changes in addition to rising temperatures. The baseline against which these changes are measured originates in historical records identifying temperature changes that have occurred in the past, such as during previous ice ages. The global climate is continuously changing, as evidenced by repeated episodes of substantial warming and cooling documented in the geologic record. The rate of change has typically been incremental, with warming or cooling trends occurring over the course of thousands of years. The past 10,000 years have been marked by a period of incremental warming, as glaciers have steadily retreated across the globe. However, scientists have observed acceleration in the rate of warming during the past 150 years. Per the United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC 2013), the understanding of anthropogenic warming and cooling influences on climate has led to a high confidence (95 percent or greater chance) that the global average net effect of human activities has been the dominant cause of warming since the mid-20th century (IPCC 2013).

Gases that absorb and re-emit infrared radiation in the atmosphere are called greenhouse gases (GHGs). The gases that are widely seen as the principal contributors to human-induced climate change include carbon dioxide (CO₂), methane (CH₄), nitrous oxides (N₂O), fluorinated gases such as hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) and perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and sulfur hexafluoride (SF₆). Water vapor is excluded from the list of GHGs because it is short-lived in the atmosphere and its atmospheric concentrations are largely determined by natural processes, such as oceanic evaporation.

GHGs are emitted by both natural processes and human activities. Of these gases, CO₂ and CH₄ are emitted in the greatest quantities from human activities. Emissions of CO₂ are largely byproducts of fossil fuel combustion, whereas CH₄ results from off-gassing associated with agricultural practices and landfills. Observations of CO₂ concentrations, globally-averaged temperature, and sea level rise are generally well within the range of the extent of the earlier IPCC projections. The recently observed increases in CH₄ and N₂O concentrations are smaller than those assumed in the scenarios in previous assessments. Each IPCC assessment has used new projections of future climate change that have become more detailed as the models have become more advanced.

Man-made GHGs, many of which have greater heat-absorption potential than CO_2 , include fluorinated gases and sulfur hexafluoride (SF₆) (California Environmental Protection Agency [CalEPA], 2006). Different types of GHGs have varying global warming potentials (GWPs). The GWP of a GHG is the potential of a gas or aerosol to trap heat in the atmosphere over a specified timescale (generally, 100 years). Because GHGs absorb different amounts of heat, a common reference gas (CO₂) is used to relate the amount of heat absorbed to the amount of the gas emissions, referred to as "carbon dioxide equivalent" (CO₂e) and is the amount of a GHG emitted multiplied by its GWP. CO_2 has a 100-year GWP of one. By contrast, CH_4 has a GWP of 25, meaning its global warming effect is 25 times greater than CO_2 on a molecule per molecule basis (IPCC 2007).

The accumulation of GHGs in the atmosphere regulates the earth's temperature. Without the natural heat trapping effect of GHGs, Earth's surface would be about 34° Celsius (C) cooler (CalEPA, 2006). However, it is believed that emissions from human activities, particularly the consumption of fossil fuels for electricity production and transportation, have elevated the concentration of these gases in the atmosphere beyond the level of naturally occurring concentrations.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory

Worldwide anthropogenic emissions of GHGs were approximately 46,000 million metric tons (MMT, or gigatonne) CO₂e in 2010 (IPCC, 2014). CO₂ emissions from fossil fuel combustion and industrial processes contributed about 65 percent of total emissions in 2010. Of anthropogenic GHGs, CO₂ was the most abundant, accounting for 76 percent of total 2010 emissions. CH₄

emissions accounted for 16 percent of the 2010 total, while N_2O and fluorinated gases account for 6 and 2 percent, respectively (IPCC, 2014).

Total U.S. GHG emissions were approximately 6,525.6 MMT CO₂e in 2012 (USEPA, 2014). Total U.S. emissions have increased by 4.7 percent since 1990; emissions decreased by 3.4 percent from 2011 to 2012 (USEPA, 2014). The decrease from 2011 to 2012 was due to a reduction in the carbon intensity of fuels consumed to generate electricity due to a decrease in coal consumption, with increased natural gas consumption. Additionally, relatively mild winter conditions, especially in regions of the United States where electricity is important for heating, resulted in an overall decrease in electricity demand in most sectors. Since 1990, U.S. emissions have increased at an average annual rate of 0.2 percent. In 2012, the transportation and industrial end-use sectors accounted for 28.2 percent and 27.9 percent of CO₂ emissions (with electricity-related emissions distributed), respectively. Meanwhile, the residential and commercial end-use sectors accounted for 16.3 percent and 16.4 percent of CO₂ emissions, respectively (USEPA, 2014).

Based upon the ARB California Greenhouse Gas Inventory for 2000-2013, California produced 459.3 MMT of CO₂e in 2013 (ARB, 2015). The major source of GHG in California is transportation, contributing 37 percent of the state's total GHG emissions. Industrial sources are the second largest source of the state's GHG emissions (ARB, 2015). California emissions are due in part to its large size and large population compared to other states. However, a factor that reduces California's per capita fuel use and GHG emissions, as compared to other states, is its relatively mild climate. The ARB has statewide unregulated GHG emissions projected for the year 2020 at 509.4 MMT CO₂e (ARB, 2014). These projections represent the emissions that would be expected to occur in the absence of any GHG reduction actions.

Potential Effects of Climate Change

Globally, climate change has the potential to affect numerous environmental resources through potential impacts related to future air temperatures and precipitation patterns. Scientific modeling predicts that continued GHG emissions at or above current rates would induce more extreme climate changes during the 21st century than were observed during the 20th century. Long-term trends have found that each of the past three decades has been warmer than all the previous decades in the instrumental record and the decade from 2000 through 2010 has been the warmest. The global combined land and ocean temperature data show an increase of about 0.89°C (0.69°C-1.08°C) over the period 1901–2012 and about 0.72°C (0.49°C-0.89°C) over the period 1951–2012 when described by a linear trend. Several independently analyzed data records of global and regional Land-Surface Air Temperature (LSAT) obtained from station observations are in agreement that LSAT as well as sea surface temperatures have increased. In addition to these findings, there are identifiable signs that global warming is currently taking place, including substantial ice loss in the Arctic over the past two decades (IPCC, 2013).

According to the CalEPA's 2010 *Climate Action Team Biennial Report*, potential impacts of climate change in California may include loss in snow pack, sea level rise, more extreme heat days per year, more high ozone days, more large forest fires, and more drought years (CalEPA, 2010). Below is a summary of some of the potential effects that could be experienced in California as a result of climate change.

Air Quality

Higher temperatures, which are conducive to air pollution formation, could worsen air quality in California. Climate change may increase the concentration of ground-level ozone, but the magnitude of the effect and therefore its indirect effects, are uncertain. If higher temperatures are accompanied by drier conditions, the potential for large wildfires could increase, which, in turn, would further worsen air quality. However, if higher temperatures are accompanied by wetter, rather than drier conditions, the rains would tend to temporarily clear the air of particulate pollution and reduce the incidence of large wildfires, thereby ameliorating the pollution associated with wildfires. Additionally, severe heat accompanied by drier conditions and poor air quality could increase the number of heat-related deaths, illnesses, and asthma attacks throughout the state (California Energy Commission [CEC] 2009).

Water Supply

Analysis of paleoclimatic data (such as tree-ring reconstructions of stream flow and precipitation) indicates a history of naturally and widely varying hydrologic conditions in California and the west, including a pattern of recurring and extended droughts. Uncertainty remains with respect to the overall impact of climate change on future water supplies in California. However, the average early spring snowpack in the Sierra Nevada decreased by about 10 percent during the last century, a loss of 1.5 million acre-feet of snowpack storage. During the same period, sea level rose eight inches along California's coast. California's temperature has risen 1° Fahrenheit (F) mostly at night and during the winter, with higher elevations experiencing the highest increase. Many Southern California cities have experienced their lowest recorded annual precipitation twice within the past decade. In a span of only two years, Los Angeles experienced both its driest and wettest years on record (California Department of Water Resources [DWR] 2008; California Climate Change Center [CCCC] 2009).

This uncertainty complicates the analysis of future water demand, especially where the relationship between climate change and its potential effect on water demand is not well understood. The Sierra snowpack provides the majority of California's water supply by accumulating snow during the state's wet winters and releasing it slowly during the state's dry springs and summers. Based upon historical data and modeling, DWR projects that the Sierra snowpack will experience a 25 to 40 percent reduction from its historic average by 2050. Climate change is also anticipated to bring warmer storms that result in less snowfall at lower elevations, reducing the total snowpack (DWR, 2008).

Hydrology and Sea Level Rise

As discussed above, climate change could potentially affect: the amount of snowfall, rainfall, and snow pack; the intensity and frequency of storms; flood hydrographs (flash floods, rain or snow events, coincidental high tide and high runoff events); sea level rise and coastal flooding; coastal erosion; and the potential for salt water intrusion. According to *The Impacts of Sea-Level Rise on the California Coast*, prepared by the California Climate Change Center (CCCC) (CCCC, 2009), climate change has the potential to induce substantial sea level rise in the coming century. The rising sea level increases the likelihood and risk of flooding. The rate of rising global mean sea levels over the 2001-2010 decade, as observed by satellites, ocean buoys and land gauges, was approximately 3.2 mm per year, which is double the observed 20th century trend of 1.6 mm per year (World Meteorological Organization [WMO], 2013). As a result, sea levels averaged over the last decade were about 8 inches higher than those of 1880 (WMO, 2013). Sea levels are rising faster now than in the previous two millennia, and the rise is expected to accelerate, even

with robust GHG emission control measures. The most recent IPCC report (2013) predicts a mean sea-level rise of 11-38 inches by 2100. This prediction is more than 50 percent higher than earlier projections of 7-23 inches, when comparing the same emissions scenarios and time periods. A rise in sea levels could result in coastal flooding and erosion and could jeopardize California's water supply due to salt water intrusion. In addition, increased CO₂ emissions can cause oceans to acidify due to the carbonic acid it forms. Increased storm intensity and frequency could affect the ability of flood-control facilities, including levees, to handle storm events.

Agriculture

California has a \$30 billion annual agricultural industry that produces half of the country's fruits and vegetables. Higher CO₂ levels can stimulate plant production and increase plant water-use efficiency. However, if temperatures rise and drier conditions prevail, water demand could increase; crop-yield could be threatened by a less reliable water supply; and greater air pollution could render plants more susceptible to pest and disease outbreaks. In addition, temperature increases could change the time of year certain crops, such as wine grapes, bloom or ripen, and thereby affect their quality (CCCC, 2006).

Ecosystems and Wildlife

Climate change and the potential resulting changes in weather patterns could have ecological effects on a global and local scale. Increasing concentrations of GHGs are likely to accelerate the rate of climate change. Scientists project that the average global surface temperature could rise by 1.0-4.5°F (0.6-2.5°C) in the next 50 years and 2.2-10°F (1.4-5.8°C) in the next century, with substantial regional variation. Soil moisture is likely to decline in many regions and intense rainstorms are likely to become more frequent. Rising temperatures could have four major impacts on plants and animals: (1) timing of ecological events; (2) geographic range; (3) species' composition within communities; and (4) ecosystem processes, such as carbon cycling and storage (Parmesan, 2006).

Local Regulations and CEQA Requirements

Federal Regulations

The United States Supreme Court in Massachusetts et al. v. Environmental Protection Agency et al. ([2007] 549 U.S. 05-1120) held that the USEPA has the authority to regulate motor-vehicle GHG emissions under the federal Clean Air Act.

The USEPA issued a Final Rule for mandatory reporting of GHG emissions in October 2009. This Final Rule applies to fossil fuel suppliers, industrial gas suppliers, direct GHG emitters, and manufacturers of heavy-duty and off-road vehicles and vehicle engines and requires annual reporting of emissions. The first annual reports for these sources were due in March 2011.

On May 13, 2010, the USEPA issued a Final Rule that took effect on January 2, 2011, setting a threshold of 75,000 tons CO₂e per year for GHG emissions. New and existing industrial facilities that meet or exceed that threshold will require a permit after that date. On November 10, 2010, the USEPA published the "Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Title V Permitting Guidance for Greenhouse Gases." The USEPA's guidance document is directed at state agencies responsible for

air pollution permits under the Federal Clean Air Act to help them understand how to implement GHG reduction requirements while mitigating costs for industry.

On January 2, 2011, the USEPA implemented the first phase of the Tailoring Rule for GHG emissions Title V Permitting. Under the first phase of the Tailoring Rule, all new sources of emissions are subject to GHG Title V permitting if they are otherwise subject to Title V for another air pollutant and they emit at least 75,000 tons CO₂e per year. Under Phase 1, no sources were required to obtain a Title V permit solely due to GHG emissions. Phase 2 of the Tailoring Rule went into effect July 1, 2011. At that time new sources were subject to GHG Title V permitting if the source emits 100,000 tons CO₂e per year, or they are otherwise subject to Title V permitting for another pollutant and emit at least 75,000 tons CO₂e per year.

On July 3, 2012 the USEPA issued the final rule that retains the GHG permitting thresholds that were established in Phases 1 and 2 of the GHG Tailoring Rule. These emission thresholds determine when Clean Air Act permits under the New Source Review Prevention of Significant Deterioration and Title V Operating Permit programs are required for new and existing industrial facilities.

California Regulations

ARB is responsible for the coordination and oversight of State and local air pollution control programs in California. California has numerous regulations aimed at reducing the state's GHG emissions. These initiatives are summarized below.

Assembly Bill (AB) 1493 (2002), California's Advanced Clean Cars program (referred to as "Pavley"), requires ARB to develop and adopt regulations to achieve "the maximum feasible and cost-effective reduction of GHG emissions from motor vehicles." On June 30, 2009, USEPA granted the waiver of Clean Air Act preemption to California for its GHG standards for motor vehicles beginning with the 2009 model year. Pavley I took effect for model years starting in 2009 to 2016 and Pavley II, which is now referred to as "LEV (Low Emission Vehicle) III GHG" will cover 2017 to 2025. Fleet average emission standards would reach 22 percent reduction from 2009 levels by 2012 and 30 percent by 2016. The Advanced Clean Cars program coordinates the goals of the Low Emissions Vehicles (LEV), Zero Emissions Vehicles (ZEV), and Clean Fuels Outlet programs and would provide major reductions in GHG emissions. By 2025, when the rules will be fully implemented, new automobiles will emit 34 percent fewer GHGs and 75 percent fewer smogforming emissions from their model year 2016 levels (ARB, 2011).

In 2005, the governor issued Executive Order (EO) S-3-05, establishing statewide GHG emissions reduction targets. EO S-3-05 provides that by 2010, emissions shall be reduced to 2000 levels; by 2020, emissions shall be reduced to 1990 levels; and by 2050, emissions shall be reduced to 80 percent below 1990 levels (CalEPA, 2006). In response to EO S-3-05, CalEPA created the Climate Action Team (CAT), which in March 2006 published the Climate Action Team Report (the "2006 CAT Report") (CalEPA, 2006). The 2006 CAT Report identified a recommended list of strategies that the state could pursue to reduce GHG emissions. These are strategies that could be implemented by various state agencies to ensure that the emission reduction targets in EO S-3-05 are met and can be met with existing authority of the state agencies. The strategies include the reduction of passenger and light duty truck emissions, the reduction of idling times for diesel

trucks, an overhaul of shipping technology/infrastructure, increased use of alternative fuels, increased recycling, landfill methane capture, and more.

California's major initiative for reducing GHG emissions is outlined in Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32), the "California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006," signed into law in 2006. AB 32 codifies the statewide goal of reducing GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020 (essentially a 15 percent reduction below 2005 emission levels, the same requirement as under S-3-05), and requires ARB to prepare a Scoping Plan that outlines the main State strategies for reducing GHGs to meet the 2020 deadline. In addition, AB 32 requires ARB to adopt regulations to require reporting and verification of statewide GHG emissions.

After completing a comprehensive review and update process, ARB approved a 1990 statewide GHG level and 2020 limit of 427 MMT CO₂e. The Scoping Plan was approved by ARB on December 11, 2008, and included measures to address GHG emission reduction strategies related to energy efficiency, water use, and recycling and solid waste, among other measures. Many of the GHG reduction measures included in the Scoping Plan (e.g., Low Carbon Fuel Standard, Advanced Clean Car standards, and Cap-and-Trade) have been adopted over the last five years.

On September 8, 2016, the governor signed Senate Bill 32 (SB 32) into law, extending AB 32 by requiring the State to further reduce GHGs to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 (the other provisions of AB 32 remain unchanged). On December 14, 2017, CARB adopted the 2017 Scoping Plan, which provides a framework for achieving the 2030 target. The 2017 Scoping Plan relies on the continuation and expansion of existing policies and regulations, such as the Cap-and-Trade Program, as well as implementation of recently adopted policies and policies. The 2017 Scoping Plan also puts an increased emphasis on innovation, adoption of existing technology, and strategic investment to support its strategies. As with the 2013 Scoping Plan Update, the 2017 Scoping Plan does not provide project-level thresholds for land use development. Instead, it recommends that local governments adopt policies and locally-appropriate quantitative thresholds consistent with a statewide per capita goal of six metric tons (MT) CO₂e by 2030 and two MT CO₂e by 2050 (CARB, 2017). As stated in the 2017 Scoping Plan, these goals may be appropriate for plan-level analyses (city, county, subregional, or regional level), but not for specific individual projects because they include all emissions sectors in the State.

In May 2014, ARB approved the first update to the AB 32 Scoping Plan. The 2013 Scoping Plan update defines ARB's climate change priorities for the next five years and sets the groundwork to reach post-2020 goals set forth in EO S-3-05. The update highlights California's progress toward meeting the "near-term" 2020 GHG emission reduction goals defined in the original Scoping Plan. It also evaluates how to align the State's longer-term GHG reduction strategies with other State policy priorities, such as for water, waste, natural resources, clean energy and transportation, and land use (ARB, 2014).

Senate Bill (SB) 97, signed in August 2007, acknowledges that climate change is an environmental issue that requires analysis in CEQA documents. In March 2010, the California Resources Agency (Resources Agency) adopted amendments to the State CEQA Guidelines for the feasible mitigation of GHG emissions or the effects of GHG emissions. The adopted guidelines give lead agencies the discretion to set quantitative or qualitative thresholds for the assessment and mitigation of GHGs and climate change impacts.

ARB Resolution 07-54 establishes 25,000 MT of GHG emissions as the threshold for identifying the largest stationary emission sources in California for purposes of requiring the annual reporting of emissions. This threshold is just over 0.005 percent of California's total inventory of GHG emissions for 2004.

Senate Bill (SB) 375, signed in August 2008, enhances the state's ability to reach AB 32 goals by directing ARB to develop regional GHG emission reduction targets to be achieved from vehicles for 2020 and 2035. In addition, SB 375 directs each of the state's 18 major Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO) to prepare a "sustainable communities strategy" (SCS) that contains a growth strategy to meet these emission targets for inclusion in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). On September 23, 2010, ARB adopted final regional targets for reducing GHG emissions from 2005 levels by 2020 and 2035. The Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) was assigned targets of an 8 percent reduction in GHGs from transportation sources by 2020 and a 13 percent reduction in GHGs from transportation sources by 2035. In the SCAG region, SB 375 also provides the option for the coordinated development of subregional plans by the subregional councils of governments and the county transportation commissions to meet SB 375 requirements."

In April 2011, the governor signed SB 2X requiring California to generate 33 percent of its electricity from renewable energy by 2020. Executive Order B-30-15, signed by the governor in April 2015, establishes a new interim statewide greenhouse gas emission reduction target to reduce GHG emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 in order to ensure California meets its target of reducing GHG emissions to 80% below 1990 levels by 2050. SB 350 was adopted in October 2015, setting goals of generating 50% of California's electricity from renewable power sources and doubling energy efficiency in existing buildings, all by 2030.

For more information on the Senate and Assembly Bills, Executive Orders, and reports discussed above, and to view reports and research referenced above, please refer to the following websites: www.climatechange.ca.gov and www.arb.ca.gov/cc/cc.htm.

California Environmental Quality Act

Pursuant to the requirements of SB 97, the Natural Resources Agency has adopted amendments to the State CEQA Guidelines for the feasible mitigation of GHG emissions or the effects of GHG emissions. As noted previously, the adopted CEQA Guidelines provide general regulatory guidance on the analysis and mitigation of GHG emissions in CEQA documents, while giving lead agencies the discretion to set quantitative or qualitative thresholds for the assessment and mitigation of GHGs and climate change impacts. To date, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD), the San Luis Obispo Air Pollution Control District (SLOAPCD), and the San Joaquin Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) have adopted quantitative significance thresholds for GHGs. However, the BAAQMD was ordered to set aside the thresholds in March 2012 by the Alameda County Superior Court and is no longer recommending that these thresholds be used as a general measure of a project's significant air quality impacts. In August 2013, the First District Court of Appeal overturned the trial court and held that the thresholds of significance adopted by the BAAQMD were not subject to CEQA review. The California Supreme Court has agreed to hear an appeal of this case. The case is currently being briefed and

the matter is still pending. Thus, BAAQMD will not issue a further recommendation until this litigation is complete

Local Regulations

SCAG adopted a Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS) that applies to the County of Ventura in April 2016. The following long term implementation programs and policies are included in the SCS:

- Long-term emission-reduction investments for trucks and rail
- Unfunded operational improvements
- Unfunded capital improvements
- Expansion of our region's high-speed rail and commuter rail systems
- Increased use of active transportation
- Technology and new mobility innovations
- Expansion of the regional network of express lanes

The City of Simi Valley has developed a Greenhouse Gas Inventory Policy to account for GHG emissions based on established GHG principles and a Climate Action Plan (CAP), which was adopted on June 4, 2012. The CAP was prepared to reduce and encourage reductions in GHG emissions from all sectors within the City. The City's goal is to reduce GHG emissions by 15 percent by 2020 as compared to a 2006 baseline. The City compares and collects GHG emissions data for its municipal operations and tracks county-wide GHG emissions (Simi Valley, 2012). An indicator of the success of these efforts is a measured reduction in GHG emissions using protocols discussed in the CAP. No specific GHG emission thresholds of significance are included in the CAP or GHG Inventory Policy.

SIGNIFICANCE THRESHOLDS AND METHODOLOGY

Air Quality Thresholds

To determine whether a project would have a significant impact to air quality, Appendix G of the *CEQA Guidelines* asks whether a project would:

- *a)* Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan;
- *b)* Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation;
- c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is in non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard (including releasing emissions that exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors);
- d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations; or
- *e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people.*

The most recent VCAPCD comprehensive publication regarding air quality assessment is the *Ventura County Air Quality Assessment Guidelines* (Guidelines) (2003). The Guidelines recommend significance thresholds for projects proposed in Ventura County. As outlined in the Guidelines, impacts are considered significant if a project would:

- Generate daily emissions exceeding 25 pounds of reactive organic compounds (ROG) or nitrogen oxides (NO_X)
- Be inconsistent with goals and policies of the Ventura County AQMP
- Create a human health hazard by exposing sensitive receptors to toxic air emissions
- *Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people*
- Cause an exceedance or make a substantial contribution to an exceedance of an ambient air quality standard²
- Directly or indirectly cause the existing population to exceed the population forecasts in the most recently adopted AQMP

According to the Guidelines, projects that generate more than 25 pounds per day of ROG and NO_X may jeopardize attainment of the federal and State ozone standard, resulting in a significant impact on air quality. The 25 pounds per day threshold for ROG and NO_X are not intended to be applied to construction emissions since such emissions are temporary.

The VCAPCD has not established quantitative thresholds for particulate matter for either operation or construction. However, the VCAPCD indicates that a project that may generate fugitive dust emissions in such quantities as to cause injury, detriment, nuisance, or annoyance to any considerable number of persons, or which may endanger the comfort, repose, health, or safety of any such person, or which may cause or have a natural tendency to cause injury or damage to business or property would have a significant air quality impact. This threshold is particularly applicable to the generation of fugitive dust during construction grading operations.

Carbon Monoxide Hotspots

A CO hotspot is a localized concentration of CO that is above the State or national 1-hour or eight hour CO ambient air standards. Localized CO "hotspots" can occur at intersections with heavy peak hour traffic. Specifically, hotspots can be created at intersections where traffic levels are sufficiently high such that the local CO concentration exceeds the federal AAQS of 35.0 parts per million (ppm) or the State AAQS of 20.0 ppm.

According to the VCAPCD Ventura County Air Quality Assessment Guidelines, a CO screening analysis should be conducted for intersections that would be significantly affected by a project and that experience, or are anticipated to experience, level of service (LOS) E or F. "Hot spots" are defined as locations where local ambient CO concentrations exceed the state or federal ambient air quality standards (SCAQMD, 1993).

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Thresholds

To determine whether a project would have a significant impact to greenhouse gases, Appendix G of the *CEQA Guidelines* asks whether a project would:

² "Substantial" is defined as making measurably worse an existing exceedance. Since the VCAPCD does not provide a numerical value for "substantial contribution," changes in carbon monoxide concentrations were determined to be significant and substantial for this analysis if concentrations including project traffic caused an exceedance of the California one-hour standard of 20 parts per million (ppm) carbon monoxide or the federal and state eight-hour standard of 9.0 (ppm) is exceeded. This latter standard follows the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) definition of significance for CO impacts (SCAQMD. Revised March 2011).

- *a)* Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment or
- *b)* Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases.

The vast majority of individual projects do not generate sufficient GHG emissions to create a project-specific impact through a direct influence to climate change; therefore, the issue of climate change typically involves an analysis of whether a project's contribution toward an impact is cumulatively considerable. "Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of an individual project are significant when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, other current projects, and probable future projects (*CEQA Guidelines*, Section 15355).

Given that Ventura County is adjacent to the SCAQMD jurisdiction and is part of the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) region, the VCAPCD recommends use of GHG emission thresholds of significance for land use development projects at levels consistent with those set by the SCAQMD (VCAPCD, 2011). According to the SCAQMD, a project would not have significant GHG emissions if the project is consistent with a GHG reduction plan that may be part of a local general plan (SCAQMD, "Proposed Tier 2 Threshold, September 2010). The CAP was formally adopted into the City's General Plan on June 4, 2012. Therefore, for the purpose of this analysis, the project would have a less than significant impact on GHG emissions, if it is consistent with the City's CAP. The project's operational and construction GHG emissions are also quantified, for informational purposes.

Air Quality Analysis Methodology

Construction Emissions Estimates

As discussed above, the VCAPD does not recommend any thresholds of significance for construction emissions; therefore, significance is determined based on a consideration of the control measures to be implemented. The California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) version 2016.3.2 was used to estimate construction emissions. CalEEMod was developed by SCAQMD and is used by jurisdictions throughout the state to quantify criteria pollutant emissions.

Maximum daily pollutant emissions include emissions from worker trips, hauling trips, construction vehicle emissions and fugitive dust from Site Preparation, Grading, Paving, Building construction, and Architectural Coating phases. Emissions include worker trips, hauling trips, construction vehicle emissions, and fugitive dust. Several assumptions were applied to CalEEMod including 70,000 square feet of demolition of existing buildings and balanced grading on-site with no soil export or import. Approximately 0.6 acres would not be graded as part of the proposed project reducing grading on the project site from 6.88 acres to 6.28 acres. VCAPCD Rule 74.2, Architectural Coatings, was applied to CalEEMod and all volatile organic compounds (VOC) were assumed to be 150 grams per liter. Additionally, Rule 55 was applied to CalEEMod for watering the construction site twice a day.

Operational Emissions

CalEEMod was also used to estimate the project's operational emissions. Operational emissions include mobile source emissions, energy emissions, and area source emissions. Mobile source

emissions are generated by the increase in motor vehicle trips to and from the project site associated with operation of on-site development. Trip generation estimates were based on land use descriptions in Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation 8th Edition. Emissions attributed to energy use include natural gas consumption for space and water heating. Area source emissions are generated by landscape maintenance equipment, consumer products and architectural coating. For a conservative estimation emissions on the project site from existing development, that would be removed as part of the project, were not considered in the analysis. To determine whether a regional air quality impact would occur, the project's increase in emissions were compared to the VCAPD's recommended regional thresholds for operational emissions.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Analysis Methodology

The proposed project was compared to applicable strategies in the City's CAP to determine the projects significance. However, the project's operational and construction GHG emissions were also quantified, as discussed below, for informational purposes.

Calculations of CO₂, CH₄, and N₂O emissions are provided to identify the magnitude of potential project effects for informational purposes only. The analysis focuses on CO₂, CH₄, and N₂O because these make up 98.9 percent of all GHG emissions by volume (IPCC, 2007) and are the GHG emissions that the project would emit in the largest quantities. Fluorinated gases, such as HFCs, PFCs, and SF₆, were also considered for the analysis. However, emissions of fluorinated gases are primarily associated with industrial processes; because the project involves mixed-use development, the quantity of fluorinated gases would be minimal. Emissions of all GHGs are converted into their CO₂e Minimal amounts of other main GHGs (such as chlorofluorocarbons [CFCs]) would be emitted, and these other GHG emissions would not substantially add to the calculated CO₂e amounts. Calculations are based on the methodologies discussed in the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA) *CEQA and Climate Change* white paper (2008) and included the use of the California Climate Action Registry (CCAR) General Reporting Protocol (2009).

This analysis calculates GHG emissions by quantifying the project's amenities and design features and also takes into account current state and federal measures that are intended to reduce GHG emissions. State and federal measures that are built into the emissions model calculation include Title 24 Energy Standards, Pavley (Clean Car Standards) and Low Carbon Fuel Standards.

Construction Emissions

Although construction activity is addressed in this analysis, CAPCOA does not discuss whether any of the suggested threshold approaches adequately address impacts from temporary construction activity. As stated in the *CEQA and Climate Change* white paper, "more study is needed to make this assessment or to develop separate thresholds for construction activity" (CAPCOA, 2008). As discussed above, following VCAPCD's guidance this analysis follows SCAQMD's recommended GHG thresholds; therefore, construction-related emissions are amortized over a 30-year period, which is recommended by SCAQMD (2010).

On-site Operational Emissions

Operational emissions from energy use (electricity and natural gas use) for the project were estimated using CalEEMod (see Appendix for CalEEMod results). The default values on which CalEEMod are based include the CEC sponsored California Commercial End Use Survey (CEUS) and Residential Appliance Saturation Survey (RASS) studies. CalEEMod provides operational emissions of CO₂, N₂O and CH₄. This methodology is considered reasonable and reliable for use, as it has been subjected to peer review by numerous public and private stakeholders, and in particular by the CEC. It is also recommended by CAPCOA (2008). For a conservative estimation emissions on the project site from existing development, that would be removed as part of the project, were not considered in the analysis.

Operational emissions include area sources (consumer products, landscape maintenance equipment, and painting), energy use (electricity and natural gas), solid waste, electricity to deliver water, and transportation emissions. In accordance with AB 939, it was assumed that the project would achieve at least a 50 percent waste diversion rate. CalEEMod does not calculate N₂O emissions related to mobile sources. As such, N₂O emissions were calculated based on the project's VMT using calculation methods provided by the California Climate Action Registry General Reporting Protocol (2009) (See Appendix for calculations). Emissions associated with area sources, including consumer products, landscape maintenance, and architectural coating were calculated in CalEEMod and utilize standard emission rates from ARB, USEPA, and district supplied emission factor values (CAPCOA, 2017).

Emissions from waste generation were also calculated in CalEEMod and are based on the IPCC's methods for quantifying GHG emissions from solid waste using the degradable organic content of waste (CAPCOA, 2017). Waste disposal rates by land use and overall composition of municipal solid waste in California was primarily based on data provided by the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle).

Emissions from water and wastewater usage calculated in CalEEMod were based on the default electricity intensity from the CEC's 2006 Refining Estimates of Water-Related Energy Use in California using the average values for Northern and Southern California.

Direct Emissions from Mobile Combustion

Emissions of CO₂ and CH₄ from transportation sources for the project s were quantified using CalEEMod. Because CalEEMod does not calculate N₂O emissions from mobile sources, N₂O emissions were quantified using the California Climate Action Registry General Reporting Protocol (2009) direct emissions factors for mobile combustion (see Appendix for calculations). The estimate of total daily trips, associated with development of the project, was based on the project trip generation study (LSA, 2018). Total vehicle trips generated by the project were then calculated and extrapolated to derive total annual mileage in CalEEMod. Emission rates for N₂O emissions were based on the vehicle mix output generated by CalEEMod and the emission factors found in the California Climate Action Registry General Reporting Protocol.

IMPACT ANALYSIS

Air Quality Impacts

Construction Impacts

Construction of the project would generate temporary air pollutant emissions. These impacts are associated with fugitive dust (PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5}) and exhaust emissions from heavy duty construction vehicles and soil hauling trucks, in addition to ROG that would be released during the drying phase upon application of architectural coatings. Construction would generally consist of site preparation, grading, erection of the proposed buildings, paving, and architectural coating.

The site preparation and grading phases involve the greatest amount of heavy equipment and the greatest generation of fugitive dust. Significant construction-related air quality impacts result if fugitive dust emissions are generated in such quantities as to cause injury, detriment, nuisance, or annoyance to any considerable number of persons or to the public, or which may endanger the comfort, repose, health, or safety of any such person or the public. Table 3 summarizes maximum daily pollutant emissions from project construction (see Appendix for CalEEMod results).

Construction Year	Estimated Emissions (lbs/day)			
Construction real	ROG	NOx	PM ₁₀	PM _{2.5}
2018 Maximum Ibs/day	5.2	59.6	10.9	6.9
2019 Maximum Ibs/day	49.1	33.2	5.0	2.4

 Table 3

 Construction Maximum Daily Air Pollutant Emissions (Ibs/day)

Notes: All calculations were made using CalEEMod. See the Appendix for results.

The VCAPCD's 25 pounds per day thresholds for ROG and NO_X are not intended to be applied to construction emissions since such emissions are temporary. Nevertheless, for construction impacts, the VCAPCD recommends minimizing fugitive dust through dust control measures. Fugitive Dust control measures are required by VCAPCD Rule 55. Rule 55 includes fugitive dust reduction measures such as securing tarps over truck loads and watering to treat bulk material to minimize fugitive dust. For architectural coating VCAPCD requires VOC content limits under Rule 74.2 for specific coating categories. Compliance with Rule 55 and Rule 74.2 would ensure that construction emissions would not be generated in such quantities as to cause injury, detriment, nuisance, or annoyance to any considerable number of persons or to the public, or which may endanger the comfort, repose, health, or safety of any such person or the public.

Operational Impacts

Operational emissions associated with the project were estimated using CalEEMod. The increase in long-term operational emissions associated with the project is shown in Table 4.

Emission Source	ROG	NO _x	со	P M 10	PM _{2.5}
Area	9.2	0.3	23.1	0.1	0.1
Energy	0.1	0.8	0.3	0.1	0.1
Mobile	4.3	18.2	53.8	12.3	3.4
Total Project Emissions	13.6	19.2	77.2	12.5	3.6
VCAPCD Thresholds	25	25	N/A	N/A	N/A
Threshold Exceeded?	No	No	N/A	N/A	N/A

Table 4Maximum Daily Operational Emissions (Ibs/day)

Source: See Appendix for CalEEMod calculations. Note: Totals may not add up due to rounding.

As shown in Table 4, emissions would not exceed the VCAPCD thresholds for ROG or NO_X. Therefore, air quality impacts associated with operation of the project would be less than significant.

Carbon Monoxide Hotspot Analysis

Areas with high vehicle density, such as congested intersections, have the potential to create high concentrations of CO, known as CO hotspots. A project's localized air quality impact is considered significant if CO emissions create a hotspot where either the California one-hour standard of 20 ppm or the federal and state eight-hour standard of 9.0 ppm is exceeded. This typically occurs at severely congested intersections (level of service [LOS] E or worse). Existing on-site development generates an estimated 1,179 vehicles per day (LSA, 2018). Based on trip rates from the project trip generation study, the project would generate 3,123 vehicle trips per day; 1,944 additional vehicle trips compared to the project site's existing use. The project would not reduce the LOS at area intersections under both AM and PM peak hour conditions (LSA Associates Inc., 2018). Therefore, the project would not result in a CO hotspot.

Toxic Air Contaminants

ARB's *Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective* (April 2005) recommends against siting sensitive receptors within 500 feet of a freeway, urban roads with 100,000 vehicles/day, or rural roads with 50,000 vehicles/day. The project site is approximately 1,670 feet north of State Route 118. Alamo Street and Tapo Street are adjacent to the project site. Alamo Street from Tapo Canyon Road to Tapo Street currently experiences a volume of 17,800 vehicle trips per day and Tapo Street from Alamo Street to Cochran Street currently experiences a volume of 11,700 vehicle trips per day (Atkins, 2012). Therefore, the project would not site sensitive receptors within 500 feet of a freeway or an urban road with 100,000 vehicles per day; therefore, the project would not create a human health hazard by exposing sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations.

The project would increase the daily trip rate in the project vicinity by 1,944 vehicles per day during project operation. An increase in 1,944 vehicle trips in the project vicinity would not increase vehicle traffic on area roadways to 100,000 vehicles (LSA, 2018). Traffic generated by

the project would not expose existing sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations or create a significant health risk to local sensitive receptors.

<u>Odors</u>

According to the *SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook*, land uses typically producing objectionable odors include agricultural uses, wastewater treatment plants, food processing plants, chemical plants, composting, refineries, landfills, dairies, and fiberglass molding. The project includes residential uses, which are not listed by the SCAQMD as a land use that produces objectionable odors. Other odors, including the smells of oil or diesel fuels, would be limited to project construction. All off-road construction equipment would be covered by the ARB anti-idling rule (SS2449(d)(2)), which limits idling to five minutes. Project construction would be temporary and would not produce odors long term. Therefore, the project would not generate objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people and impacts would be less than significant.

AQMP Consistency

The VCAPCD Guidelines state that project consistency with the AQMP can be determined by comparing the actual population growth in the county with the projected growth rates used in the AQMP. However, if there are more recent population forecasts that have been adopted by the Ventura Council of Governments (VCOG) where the total county population is lower than that included in the most recently adopted AQMP population forecasts, lead agencies may use the more recent VCOG forecasts for determining AQMP consistency.

The Ventura County 2016 population is estimated at 856,508 a 0.7 percent growth increase from 2015 (California Department of Finance [DOF], 2016). VCOG estimates that the population will increase to 995,375 by 2040, an increase in approximately 138,867 residents. The project involves the development of 278 residential units. Using an average household size of 3.0 persons (VCOG, 2008) about 834 residents would be added to Simi Valley as a result of the project. The addition of 834 new residents would increase the Ventura County population to 857,342 residents, which falls within the population growth forecast for Ventura County. The project would account for less than 1 percent of Ventura County's projected population growth. Therefore, the project would not generate growth exceeding the VCOG projected population growth forecast and would comply with the AQMP.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts

Construction Emissions

As shown in Table 5, CO₂e emissions generated by construction of the project are estimated to be approximately 925 metric tons. Air districts such as the SCAQMD (2010) have recommended amortizing construction-related emissions over a 30-year period in conjunction with the project's operational emissions. When amortized over a 30-year period (the assumed life of the project), CO₂e construction emissions would be about 31 metric tons per year.

Estimated Construct	
	Annual Emissions (Carbon Dioxide Equivalent [CO₂e])
Total	924.8 metric tons
Amortized over 30 years	30.8 metric tons per year

Table 5
Estimated Construction Emissions of Greenhouse Gases

Source: Calculations were made in CalEEMod, see Appendix for full model output.

Operational Indirect and Stationary Direct Emissions

Operational GHG emissions associated with the project were estimated using CalEEMod. Table 6 shows the project GHG emissions and indicates that the project would generate approximately 3,472 metric tons CO₂e per year from operational and mobile emissions.

Emission Source	Annual Emissions MT CO₂e
Operational	
Area	3.5
Energy	928.4
Solid Waste	32.2
Water	68.8
Mobile	
CH ₄ and CO ₂	2,318.5
N ₂ O	120.7
Total Project Operational Emissions	3,472.1

Table 6Long-Term Annual Emissions of Greenhouse Gases

Sources: See Appendix for calculations. Note: Total may not add up due to rounding.

Table 7 summarizes the combined emissions associated with construction and operation of the project. The project would increase GHG emissions by approximately 3,503 metric tons of CO₂e per year.

Table 7Combined Annual Emissions of Greenhouse Gases

Emission Source	Annual Emissions MT CO₂e
Construction	30.8
Operation	1,032.9
Mobile	2,439.2
Total Project Emissions	3,502.9

Sources: See Appendix for calculations and for GHG emission factor assumptions. Assumed compliance with SCAQMD Fugitive Dust Rule 403 and SCAQMD Architectural Coating Rule 1113. Note: Total may not add up due to rounding.

Consistency with GHG Reduction Plans & Policies

As discussed under "Greenhouse Gas Emissions Thresholds," the City of Simi Valley has adopted a goal to reduce its community GHG emissions to a 15 percent below its 2006 GHG emissions levels by 2020 as part of the City's Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan, adopted on June 4, 2012. The proposed project's consistency with local measures is described in Table 8.

Strategy	Project Consistency
Energy Reduction Measures	I
R2-E1 Residential Energy Efficiency Program R2-E5 Commercial Energy Efficiency Program	Consistent The project would be required to comply with the Title 24 standards for Building Energy Efficiency that are in effect at the time of development. These standards include actions such as insulation certified by the Department of Consumer Affairs, Bureau of Home Furnishing and Thermal Insulation to reduce energy necessary to regulate building temperature and natural gas systems only installed if they do not have a continuously burning pilot light, to save energy.
R2-E8 Water Use Reduction Initiative	Consistent The project would be required to comply with the City's water use restrictions on time, area, frequency, and duration of specified allowable water usages. The project also includes drought tolerant landscaping throughout the project site, which would further reduce water use.
Solid Waste	· · ·
R2-W1 City Diversion Program	Consistent The project would comply with current City of Simi Valley solid waste diversion programs and include recycling infrastructure as part of the project.
Transportation	
R2-T1 Anti-Idling Enforcement	Consistent Current State law restricts diesel truck idling to five minutes or less. Diesel trucks operating from and making deliveries to the project site are subject to this state-wide law. Construction vehicles are also subject to this regulation.

Table 8Project Consistency with City of Simi Valley Climate Action Plan

As discussed under "Greenhouse Gas Emissions Background," the 2006 CAT Report identified a recommended list of strategies that the State could pursue to reduce GHG emissions. The strategies include the reduction of passenger and light duty truck emissions, reduction of energy and water use and increased recycling. The project would be consistent with or would not conflict with objectives of the CAT report, shown in Table 9.

Table 9
Project Consistency with Applicable Climate Action Team
Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies

Strategy	Project Consistency
California Air Resources Board	
Vehicle Climate Change Standards AB 1493 (Pavley) required the state to develop and adopt regulations that achieve the maximum feasible and cost-effective reduction of climate change emissions emitted by passenger vehicles and light duty trucks. Regulations were adopted by the ARB in September 2004.	Consistent Vehicles that travel to and from the project site on public roadways would be in compliance with ARB vehicle standards that are in effect at the time of vehicle purchase.
Diesel Anti-Idling The ARB adopted a measure to limit diesel-fueled commercial motor vehicle idling in July 2004.	Consistent Current State law restricts diesel truck idling to five minutes or less. Diesel trucks operating from and making deliveries to the project site are subject to this state-wide law. Construction vehicles are also subject to this regulation.
<i>Alternative Fuels: Biodiesel Blends</i> ARB would develop regulations to require the use of 1 to 4% biodiesel displacement of California diesel fuel.	Consistent The diesel vehicles such as construction vehicles that travel to and from the project site on public roadways could utilize this fuel once it is commercially available. The nearest biodiesel station is located at 6417 Ventura Boulevard approximately 25 miles east of the project site.
<i>Alternative Fuels: Ethanol</i> Increased use of E-85 fuel.	Not Applicable The project is a residential/retail project. Additionally, vehicles could use E-85 fuel located 25 miles east of the project site located at 6417 Ventura Boulevard.
Heavy-Duty Vehicle Emission Reduction Measures Increased efficiency in the design of heavy duty vehicles and an education program for the heavy duty vehicle sector.	Consistent Heavy-duty vehicles for construction activities that travel to and from the project site on public roadways would be subject to all applicable ARB efficiency standards that are in effect at the time of vehicle manufacture.
Department of Forestry	
Urban Forestry A new statewide goal of planting 5 million trees in urban areas by 2020 would be achieved through the expansion of local urban forestry programs.	Consistent The project would not interfere with the statewide goal of planting trees.
Energy Commission (CEC)	
Building Energy Efficiency Standards in Place and in Progress Public Resources Code 25402 authorizes the CEC to adopt and periodically update its building energy efficiency standards (that apply to newly constructed buildings and additions to and alterations to existing buildings).	Consistent The project would be required to comply with the Title 24 standards for Building Energy Efficiency that are in effect at the time of development. These standards include actions such as insulation certified by the Department of Consumer Affairs, Bureau of Home Furnishing and Thermal Insulation to reduce energy necessary to regulate building temperature and natural gas systems only installed if they do not have a continuously burning pilot light, to save energy.
Appliance Energy Efficiency Standards in Place and in Progress Public Resources Code 25402 authorizes the Energy Commission to adopt and periodically	Consistent Under State law, appliances that are purchased for the project - both pre- and post-development – would be consistent with energy efficiency standards that are in effect at the time of

Table 9
Project Consistency with Applicable Climate Action Team
Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies

Strategy	Project Consistency
update its appliance energy efficiency standards (that apply to devices and equipment using energy that are sold or offered for sale in California).	manufacture.
<i>Fuel-Efficient Replacement Tires & Inflation</i> <i>Programs</i> State legislation established a statewide program to encourage the production and use of more efficient tires.	Not Applicable This is a residential/retail project and would not require fuel- efficient replacement tires and inflation programs.
<i>Municipal Utility Renewable Portfolio Standard</i> California's Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS), established in 2002, requires that all load serving entities achieve a goal of 20% of retail electricity sales from renewable energy sources by 2017, within certain cost constraints.	Not applicable The project would not preclude implementation of this strategy by Southern California Edison.
<i>Municipal Utility Combined Heat and Power</i> Cost effective reduction from fossil fuel consumption in the commercial and industrial sector through the application of on-site power production to meet both heat and electricity loads.	Not applicable Project development would not preclude the implementation of this strategy by the municipality.
<i>Alternative Fuels: Non-Petroleum Fuels</i> Increasing the use of non-petroleum fuels in California's transportation sector, as recommended as recommended in the CEC's 2003 and 2005 Integrated Energy Policy Reports.	Not Applicable This is a residential/retail project and would not require the use of alternative non-petroleum fuels.
Public Utilities Commission (PUC)	
Accelerated Renewable Portfolio Standard The Governor has set a goal of achieving 33% renewable in the State's resource mix by 2020. The joint PUC/Energy Commission September 2005 Energy Action Plan II (EAP II) adopts the 33% goal.	Not applicable Project development would not preclude the implementation of this strategy by energy providers.
Explore and implement innovative strategies and projects that enhance mobility and air quality, including those that increase the walkability of communities and accessibility to transit via non- auto modes, including walking, bicycling, and neighborhood electric vehicles (NEVs) or other alternative fueled vehicles.	Consistent The project site is located in an urbanized area with sidewalks, large road shoulders for bicycles, and in proximity to existing residential and commercial development
Collaborate with local jurisdictions to plan and develop residential and employment development around current and planned transit stations and neighborhood commercial centers.	Consistent As discussed above, the project site is located in an urbanized area with sidewalks, large road shoulders for bicycles, and in proximity to existing commercial centers. The project would not conflict with efforts to support the use of public transportation.
Develop first-mile/last-mile strategies on a local level to provide an incentive for making trips by transit, bicycling, walking, or neighborhood electric vehicle or other ZEV options.	Consistent As discussed above, the project site is located in an urbanized area with sidewalks, large road shoulders for bicycles, and in proximity to existing residential and commercial development.

25

Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies				
Strategy	Project Consistency			
Transportation Demand Management Actions and Strategies				
Support work-based programs that encourage emission reduction strategies and incentivize active transportation commuting or ride-share modes.	Not applicable The project is a residential/retail project. Residents could participate in ridesharing or other commuting programs, such as bicycling, intended to reduce emissions from motor vehicles.			
Clean Vehicle Technology Actions and Strategies				
Develop a Regional PEV Readiness Plan with a focus on charge port infrastructure plans to support and promote the introduction of electric and other alternative fuel vehicles in Southern California.	Not applicable This is a residential/retail project, but project development would not preclude implementation of this strategy.			

Table 9Project Consistency with Applicable Climate Action TeamGreenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Strategies

As shown in Table 7, the project would increase GHG emissions by approximately 3,503 metric tons of CO₂e per year. As discussed above and illustrated in Tables 8 and 9, the project would not conflict with the City's CAP, SCAG's RTP/SCS, or CAT report GHG reduction strategies; therefore, the project would not conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs and, per SCAQMD's recommended Tier 2 thresholds, impacts related to GHG emissions would be less than significant.

REFERENCES

- Atkins. *Simi Valley General Plan Final Environmental Impact Report*. SCH No. 2009121004. June 2012. Accessed at: <u>http://www.simivalley.org/index.aspx?page=255</u>
- California Air Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA). 2017. *California Emissions Estimator Model User's Guide: Version* 2016.3.2. http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/defaultsource/caleemod/01_user-39-s-guide2016-3-2_15november2017.pdf?sfvrsn=4 (accessed May 2018)
- California Air Pollution Control Officers Association. CEQA and Climate Change: Addressing Climate Change through California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). January 2008
- California Air Resources Board. *California Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory* 2015 Edition. June 2015. Available at: <u>http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/data.htm</u>
- California Air Resources Board. 2020 BAU Forecast, Version: May 27, 2014. Available at: ttp://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/tables/2020_bau_forecast_by_scoping_category _2014-05-22.pdf
- California Air Resources Board. AB 32 Scoping Plan Website. Updated June 2014. Accessed September, 2014. Available: <u>http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/scopingplan.htm</u>
- California Air Resources Board. California's 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan. December 14, 2017. Available at: https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/scoping_plan_2017.pdf. Accessed April 2018.
- California Air Resources Board. *Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective*. April 2005. Accessed at: http://www.arb.ca.gov/ch/handbook.pdf
- California Climate Change Center (CCCC). Climate Scenarios for California. 2006.
- California Climate Change Center. The Impacts of Sea-Level Rise on the California Coast. May 2009.
- California Department of Finance (DOF). *E-1 Cities, Counties, and the State Population Estimates with Annual Percent Change – January 1, 2015 and 2016.* Accessed at: http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-1/view.php
- California Department of Water Resources. October 2008. *Managing an Uncertain Future: Climate Change Adaption Strategies for California's Water*.
- California Energy Commission. *Environmental Health and Equity Impacts from Climate Change and Mitigation Policies in California: A Review of the Literature*. March 2009.
- California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA). *Climate Action Team Biennial Report*. Final Report. April 2010.

- County of Ventura. *Climate Protection Plan for Government Operations: A Community Commitment*. April 2012. Accessed at: https://www.ventura.org/sustain/downloads/climate_protection_plan.pdf
- Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [IPCC], 2007: Summary for Policymakers. In: *Climate Change* 2007: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group I to the Fourth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [Solomon, S., D. Qin, M. Manning, Z. Chen, M. Marquis, K.B. Averyt, M.Tignor and H.L. Miller (eds.)]. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, United Kingdom and New York, NY, USA.
- Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [IPCC], 2013: Summary for Policymakers. In: *Climate Change 2013: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group I to the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change* [Stocker, T.F., D. Qin, G.-K. Plattner, M. Tignor, S. K. Allen, J. Boschung, A. Nauels, Y. Xia, V. Bex and P.M. Midgley (eds.)]. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, United Kingdom and New York, NY, USA.
- Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [IPCC], 2014: Summary for Policymakers. In: *Climate Change 2014, Mitigation of Climate Change. Contribution of Working Group III to the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change* [Edenhofer, O., R. Pichs-Madruga, Y. Sokona, E. Farahani, S. Kadner, K. Seyboth, A. Adler, I. Baum, S. Brunner, P. Eickemeier, B. Kriemann, J. Savolainen, S. Schlömer, C. von Stechow, T. Zwickel and J.C. Minx (eds.)]. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, United Kingdom and New York, NY, USA.
- LSA Associates, Inc. (LSA). 2018. Traffic Impact Report [for the] Alamo Street Mixed Use Project, City of Simi Valley, Ventura County, California. May 2018.
- Parmesan, C. August 2006. Ecological and Evolutionary Responses to Recent Climate Change.
- South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). April 1993. CEQA Air Quality Handbook.
- SCAQMD. Interim CEQA GHG Significance Threshold for Stationary Sources, Rules and Plans. 2008. Accessed July 2015 at: http://www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-thresholds/ghgboardsynopsis.pdf?sfvrsn=2.
- Simi Valley, City of. 2012. *Climate Action Plan*. June 4, 2012. Accessed June 27, 2016 at: http://www.simivalley.org/index.aspx?page=513

Simi Valley, City of. Greenhouse Gas Inventory Policy. 2012.

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). *Inventory of U.S. Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Sinks:* 1990-2012. U. S. EPA #430-R-11-005. April 2014. Available: <u>http://www.epa.gov/climatechange/emissions/usinventoryreport.html</u>

- Ventura County Air Pollution Control Board (VCAPCB). *Final Ventura County 2007 Air Quality Management Plan*. May 13, 2008. Accessed online at: http://www.vcapcd.org/pubs/Planning/AQMP/VC07_AQMP_FINAL.pdf
- VCAPCD, Greenhouse Gas Thresholds of Significance Options for Land Use Development Projects in Ventura County, November 8, 2011. Available online at <u>http://www.vcapcd.org/pubs/Planning/GHGThresholdReportRevised.pdf</u>
- Ventura Council of Governments. 2040 Population Forecast, Ventura Cities and County. May 2008. Accessed at: <u>http://vcrma.org/planning/pdf/demograghics/</u>2040_revised_Decapolis%205_23_08_Final.pdf
- World Meteorological Organization. March 2013. A summary of current and climate change findings and figures.



Appendix CalEEMod Results and N₂O Mobile Emissions Worksheets

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project

South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Enclosed Parking Structure	552.00	Space	4.97	220,800.00	0
Parking Lot	92.00	Space	0.83	36,800.00	0
Apartments Mid Rise	278.00	Dwelling Unit	5.87	278,000.00	795

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.9	Precipitation Freq (Days)	37
Climate Zone	8			Operational Year	2019
Utility Company	Southern California Ediso	n			
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (lb/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Sf and lot acreage based on site plan

Construction Phase - Architectural coating extended to overlap with building phase.

Grading - Grading assumed to be balanced on site, and grading area estimated from site plan (5.87 acres)- area not graded (0.6 acres) = 5.27 acres

Demolition - Existing sf - 8,300 sf to remain = 69,700 sf

Architectural Coating - Per VCAOCD Rule 74.2

Vehicle Trips - Trip generation rate 7.32 per project traffic study by LSA dated May 2018.

Woodstoves - No hearths in apartments

Area Coating - Per VCAPCD Rule 74.2

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - Watering in compliance with VCAPCD per Rule 55

Waste Mitigation - Per AB 939- 50% diversion rate assumed

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Nonresidential_Exterior	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Nonresidential_Interior	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Parking	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Residential_Exterior	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Residential_Interior	250.00	150.00
tblAreaCoating	Area_EF_Parking	250	150
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	20.00	120.00
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	300.00	230.00
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	30.00	20.00
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	12/12/2019	8/14/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	10/17/2019	6/28/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	6/28/2018	6/29/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	8/23/2018	8/10/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	11/14/2019	7/26/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	7/12/2018	7/13/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	11/15/2019	2/28/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	8/24/2018	8/13/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	6/1/2018	6/4/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	7/13/2018	7/16/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	10/18/2019	7/1/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	6/29/2018	7/2/2018
tblGrading	AcresOfGrading	50.00	5.27
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	7.32	5.87
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	6.39	7.32
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.86	7.32
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	6.65	7.32

Page 4 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
2018	5.1914	59.5993	35.8059	0.0701	18.2141	2.6349	20.7921	9.9699	2.4241	12.3416	0.0000	7,054.703 8	7,054.703 8	1.9498	0.0000	7,076.955 2
2019	49.0776	33.1986	33.6972	0.0769	3.5260	1.5168	5.0429	0.9462	1.4347	2.3809	0.0000	7,701.748 9	7,701.748 9	0.9055	0.0000	7,724.387 2
Maximum	49.0776	59.5993	35.8059	0.0769	18.2141	2.6349	20.7921	9.9699	2.4241	12.3416	0.0000	7,701.748 9	7,701.748 9	1.9498	0.0000	7,724.387 2

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/	day							lb/d	lay		
2018	5.1914	59.5993	35.8059	0.0701	8.2777	2.6349	10.8556	4.5080	2.4241	6.8798	0.0000	7,054.703 8	7,054.703 8	1.9498	0.0000	7,076.955 2
2019	49.0776	33.1986	33.6972	0.0769	3.5260	1.5168	5.0429	0.9462	1.4347	2.3809	0.0000	7,701.748 9	7,701.748 9	0.9055	0.0000	7,724.387 2
Maximum	49.0776	59.5993	35.8059	0.0769	8.2777	2.6349	10.8556	4.5080	2.4241	6.8798	0.0000	7,701.748 9	7,701.748 9	1.9498	0.0000	7,724.387 2

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	45.71	0.00	38.46	50.03	0.00	37.10	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Page 6 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Area	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614
Energy	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Mobile	4.3030	18.1625	53.7742	0.1383	12.1547	0.1860	12.3407	3.2514	0.1754	3.4268		13,948.34 08	13,948.34 08	0.6683		13,965.04 89
Total	13.5615	19.2322	77.2309	0.1446	12.1547	0.3774	12.5321	3.2514	0.3668	3.6182	0.0000	15,013.73 86	15,013.73 86	0.7289	0.0188	15,037.55 46

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Area	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614
Energy	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Mobile	4.3030	18.1625	53.7742	0.1383	12.1547	0.1860	12.3407	3.2514	0.1754	3.4268		13,948.34 08	13,948.34 08	0.6683		13,965.04 89
Total	13.5615	19.2322	77.2309	0.1446	12.1547	0.3774	12.5321	3.2514	0.3668	3.6182	0.0000	15,013.73 86	15,013.73 86	0.7289	0.0188	15,037.55 46

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Demolition	Demolition	6/4/2018	6/29/2018	5	20	
2	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	7/2/2018	7/13/2018	5	10	
3	Grading	Grading	7/16/2018	8/10/2018	5	20	
4	Building Construction	Building Construction	8/13/2018	6/28/2019	5	230	
5	Paving	Paving	7/1/2019	7/26/2019	5	20	
6	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	2/28/2019	8/14/2019	5	120	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 5.27

Acres of Paving: 5.8

Residential Indoor: 562,950; Residential Outdoor: 187,650; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 15,456 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48
Demolition	Excavators	3	8.00	158	0.38
Demolition	Concrete/Industrial Saws	1	8.00	81	0.73
Grading	Excavators	2	8.00	158	0.38
Building Construction	Cranes	1	7.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	3	8.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Paving	Pavers	2	8.00	130	0.42
Paving	Rollers	2	8.00	80	0.38
Demolition	Rubber Tired Dozers	2	8.00	247	0.40
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	8.00	247	0.40
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	3	7.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	2	8.00	97	0.37
Paving	Paving Equipment	2	8.00	132	0.36
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	4	8.00	97	0.37
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	3	8.00	247	0.40
Grading	Scrapers	2	8.00	367	0.48
Building Construction	Welders	1	8.00	46	0.45

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Demolition	6	15.00	0.00	317.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Site Preparation	7	18.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	8	20.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	9	308.00	72.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	6	15.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	62.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Demolition - 2018

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					3.5066	0.0000	3.5066	0.5310	0.0000	0.5310			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388		1.9386	1.9386		1.8048	1.8048		3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4
Total	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388	3.5066	1.9386	5.4452	0.5310	1.8048	2.3358		3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4

Page 10 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.2 Demolition - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.1632	5.3707	1.3090	0.0124	0.2759	0.0343	0.3102	0.0755	0.0328	0.1083		1,345.054 4	1,345.054 4	0.1141		1,347.907 6
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0760	0.0581	0.5374	1.1900e- 003	0.1232	8.7000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	8.0000e- 004	0.0335		117.9817	117.9817	4.3600e- 003		118.0906
Total	0.2391	5.4288	1.8464	0.0135	0.3991	0.0352	0.4343	0.1082	0.0336	0.1418		1,463.036 1	1,463.036 1	0.1185		1,465.998 2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust					1.5780	0.0000	1.5780	0.2389	0.0000	0.2389		- - - - -	0.0000		- - - -	0.0000
Off-Road	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388		1.9386	1.9386		1.8048	1.8048	0.0000	3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4
Total	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388	1.5780	1.9386	3.5165	0.2389	1.8048	2.0438	0.0000	3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4

Page 11 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.2 Demolition - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.1632	5.3707	1.3090	0.0124	0.2759	0.0343	0.3102	0.0755	0.0328	0.1083		1,345.054 4	1,345.054 4	0.1141		1,347.907 6
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0760	0.0581	0.5374	1.1900e- 003	0.1232	8.7000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	8.0000e- 004	0.0335		117.9817	117.9817	4.3600e- 003		118.0906
Total	0.2391	5.4288	1.8464	0.0135	0.3991	0.0352	0.4343	0.1082	0.0336	0.1418		1,463.036 1	1,463.036 1	0.1185		1,465.998 2

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					18.0663	0.0000	18.0663	9.9307	0.0000	9.9307			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380		2.5769	2.5769		2.3708	2.3708		3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8
Total	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380	18.0663	2.5769	20.6432	9.9307	2.3708	12.3014		3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8

Page 12 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0912	0.0698	0.6448	1.4200e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		141.5780	141.5780	5.2300e- 003		141.7087
Total	0.0912	0.0698	0.6448	1.4200e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		141.5780	141.5780	5.2300e- 003		141.7087

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust					8.1298	0.0000	8.1298	4.4688	0.0000	4.4688		- - - - -	0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380		2.5769	2.5769		2.3708	2.3708	0.0000	3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8
Total	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380	8.1298	2.5769	10.7067	4.4688	2.3708	6.8396	0.0000	3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8

Page 13 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0912	0.0698	0.6448	1.4200e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		141.5780	141.5780	5.2300e- 003		141.7087
Total	0.0912	0.0698	0.6448	1.4200e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		141.5780	141.5780	5.2300e- 003		141.7087

3.4 Grading - 2018

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					6.3015	0.0000	6.3015	3.3404	0.0000	3.3404			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620		2.6337	2.6337		2.4230	2.4230		6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8
Total	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620	6.3015	2.6337	8.9353	3.3404	2.4230	5.7634		6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8

Page 14 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Grading - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.1013	0.0775	0.7165	1.5800e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		157.3089	157.3089	5.8100e- 003		157.4542
Total	0.1013	0.0775	0.7165	1.5800e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		157.3089	157.3089	5.8100e- 003		157.4542

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					2.8357	0.0000	2.8357	1.5032	0.0000	1.5032			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620		2.6337	2.6337		2.4230	2.4230	0.0000	6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8
Total	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620	2.8357	2.6337	5.4694	1.5032	2.4230	3.9262	0.0000	6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8

Page 15 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.4 Grading - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day		<u>.</u>					lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.1013	0.0775	0.7165	1.5800e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		157.3089	157.3089	5.8100e- 003		157.4542
Total	0.1013	0.0775	0.7165	1.5800e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		157.3089	157.3089	5.8100e- 003		157.4542

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099		2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3
Total	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099		2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3

Page 16 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.4059	9.5827	3.2273	0.0188	0.4865	0.0927	0.5792	0.1400	0.0887	0.2287		2,011.211 1	2,011.211 1	0.1585		2,015.172 9
Worker	1.5597	1.1934	11.0338	0.0244	2.5302	0.0178	2.5479	0.6711	0.0164	0.6875		2,422.557 6	2,422.557 6	0.0895		2,424.794 0
Total	1.9655	10.7761	14.2611	0.0432	3.0167	0.1105	3.1272	0.8111	0.1051	0.9162		4,433.768 7	4,433.768 7	0.2479		4,439.966 9

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099	0.0000	2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3
Total	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099	0.0000	2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3

Page 17 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.4059	9.5827	3.2273	0.0188	0.4865	0.0927	0.5792	0.1400	0.0887	0.2287		2,011.211 1	2,011.211 1	0.1585		2,015.172 9
Worker	1.5597	1.1934	11.0338	0.0244	2.5302	0.0178	2.5479	0.6711	0.0164	0.6875		2,422.557 6	2,422.557 6	0.0895		2,424.794 0
Total	1.9655	10.7761	14.2611	0.0432	3.0167	0.1105	3.1272	0.8111	0.1051	0.9162		4,433.768 7	4,433.768 7	0.2479		4,439.966 9

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899		1.2127	1.2127		2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5
Total	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899		1.2127	1.2127		2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5

Page 18 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/d	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.3592	9.0222	2.9194	0.0186	0.4866	0.0772	0.5638	0.1400	0.0739	0.2139		1,999.924 8	1,999.924 8	0.1553		2,003.806 5
Worker	1.4213	1.0507	9.8000	0.0237	2.5302	0.0175	2.5476	0.6711	0.0161	0.6872		2,354.781 5	2,354.781 5	0.0792		2,356.761 7
Total	1.7805	10.0729	12.7194	0.0423	3.0167	0.0947	3.1114	0.8111	0.0900	0.9011		4,354.706 3	4,354.706 3	0.2345		4,360.568 3

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899	1 1 1	1.2127	1.2127	0.0000	2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5
Total	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899		1.2127	1.2127	0.0000	2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5

Page 19 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.3592	9.0222	2.9194	0.0186	0.4866	0.0772	0.5638	0.1400	0.0739	0.2139		1,999.924 8	1,999.924 8	0.1553		2,003.806 5
Worker	1.4213	1.0507	9.8000	0.0237	2.5302	0.0175	2.5476	0.6711	0.0161	0.6872		2,354.781 5	2,354.781 5	0.0792		2,356.761 7
Total	1.7805	10.0729	12.7194	0.0423	3.0167	0.0947	3.1114	0.8111	0.0900	0.9011		4,354.706 3	4,354.706 3	0.2345		4,360.568 3

3.6 Paving - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	1.4544	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586		2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8
Paving	0.1087					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	1.5632	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586		2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8

Page 20 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.6 Paving - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0692	0.0512	0.4773	1.1500e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		114.6809	114.6809	3.8600e- 003		114.7774
Total	0.0692	0.0512	0.4773	1.1500e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		114.6809	114.6809	3.8600e- 003		114.7774

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	1.4544	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586	0.0000	2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8
Paving	0.1087					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	1.5632	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586	0.0000	2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8

Page 21 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.6 Paving - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category			<u>.</u>		lb/o	day		<u>.</u>					lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0692	0.0512	0.4773	1.1500e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		114.6809	114.6809	3.8600e- 003		114.7774
Total	0.0692	0.0512	0.4773	1.1500e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		114.6809	114.6809	3.8600e- 003		114.7774

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	44.3834					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2664	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288		281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423
Total	44.6498	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288		281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.2861	0.2115	1.9727	4.7600e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		474.0145	474.0145	0.0159		474.4131
Total	0.2861	0.2115	1.9727	4.7600e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		474.0145	474.0145	0.0159		474.4131

Mitigated Construction On-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Archit. Coating	44.3834					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2664	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423
Total	44.6498	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423

Page 23 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.2861	0.2115	1.9727	4.7600e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		474.0145	474.0145	0.0159		474.4131
Total	0.2861	0.2115	1.9727	4.7600e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		474.0145	474.0145	0.0159		474.4131

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 24 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	4.3030	18.1625	53.7742	0.1383	12.1547	0.1860	12.3407	3.2514	0.1754	3.4268		13,948.34 08	13,948.34 08	0.6683		13,965.04 89
Unmitigated	4.3030	18.1625	53.7742	0.1383	12.1547	0.1860	12.3407	3.2514	0.1754	3.4268		13,948.34 08	13,948.34 08	0.6683	 - - - -	13,965.04 89

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Ave	rage Daily Trip Ra	ate	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
Apartments Mid Rise	2,034.96	2,034.96	2034.96	5,726,479	5,726,479
Enclosed Parking Structure	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	2,034.96	2,034.96	2,034.96	5,726,479	5,726,479

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
Apartments Mid Rise	10.80	7.30	7.50	37.50	15.00	47.50	86	11	3
Enclosed Parking Structure	9.50	7.30	7.30	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Parking Lot	9.50	7.30	7.30	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0

4.4 Fleet Mix

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 25 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
Apartments Mid Rise	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680
Enclosed Parking Structure	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680
Parking Lot	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2

Page 26 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Apartments Mid Rise	8703.65	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Apartments Mid Rise	8.70365	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	,	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	,	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614
Unmitigated	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003	r 1 1 1 1	0.1265	0.1265	 1 1 1	0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614

Page 28 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/	day							lb/d	lay		
Architectural Coating	2.4123		1 1 1		1	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Products	6.0404					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Hearth	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	0.7118	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265		41.4385	41.4385	0.0409		42.4614
Total	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614

Page 29 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Winter

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Architectural Coating	2.4123					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	6.0404		, , , , ,			0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Hearth	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	0.7118	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265		41.4385	41.4385	0.0409		42.4614
Total	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equip	ment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Days/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
<u>Boilers</u>						
Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type	
User Defined Equipment						
Equipment Type	Number					
Едирнент туре	Number	l				
11.0 Vegetation						

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project

South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Enclosed Parking Structure	552.00	Space	4.97	220,800.00	0
Parking Lot	92.00	Space	0.83	36,800.00	0
Apartments Mid Rise	278.00	Dwelling Unit	5.87	278,000.00	795

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.9	Precipitation Freq (Days)	37
Climate Zone	8			Operational Year	2019
Utility Company	Southern California Ediso	n			
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (lb/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Sf and lot acreage based on site plan

Construction Phase - Architectural coating extended to overlap with building phase.

Grading - Grading assumed to be balanced on site, and grading area estimated from site plan (5.87 acres)- area not graded (0.6 acres) = 5.27 acres

Demolition - Existing sf - 8,300 sf to remain = 69,700 sf

Architectural Coating - Per VCAOCD Rule 74.2

Vehicle Trips - Trip generation rate 7.32 per project traffic study by LSA dated May 2018.

Woodstoves - No hearths in apartments

Area Coating - Per VCAPCD Rule 74.2

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - Watering in compliance with VCAPCD per Rule 55

Waste Mitigation - Per AB 939- 50% diversion rate assumed

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value	
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Nonresidential_Exterior	250.00	150.00	
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Nonresidential_Interior	250.00	150.00	
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Parking	250.00	150.00	
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Residential_Exterior	250.00	150.00	
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Residential_Interior	250.00	150.00	
tblAreaCoating	Area_EF_Parking	250	150	
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	20.00	120.00	
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	300.00	230.00	
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	30.00	20.00	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	12/12/2019	8/14/2019	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	10/17/2019	6/28/2019	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	6/28/2018	6/29/2018	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	8/23/2018	8/10/2018	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	11/14/2019	7/26/2019	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	7/12/2018	7/13/2018	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	11/15/2019	2/28/2019	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	8/24/2018	8/13/2018	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	6/1/2018	6/4/2018	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	7/13/2018	7/16/2018	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	10/18/2019	7/1/2019	
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	6/29/2018	7/2/2018	
tblGrading	AcresOfGrading	50.00	5.27	
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	7.32	5.87	
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	6.39	7.32	
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.86	7.32	
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	6.65	7.32	

Page 4 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
2018	5.1793	59.5890	35.8062	0.0715	18.2141	2.6349	20.7921	9.9699	2.4241	12.3416	0.0000	7,204.506 9	7,204.506 9	1.9499	0.0000	7,226.578 3
2019	48.8567	33.0122	33.4718	0.0786	3.5260	1.5151	5.0411	0.9462	1.4330	2.3792	0.0000	7,870.034 9	7,870.034 9	0.8990	0.0000	7,892.509 8
Maximum	48.8567	59.5890	35.8062	0.0786	18.2141	2.6349	20.7921	9.9699	2.4241	12.3416	0.0000	7,870.034 9	7,870.034 9	1.9499	0.0000	7,892.509 8

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
2018	5.1793	59.5890	35.8062	0.0715	8.2777	2.6349	10.8556	4.5080	2.4241	6.8798	0.0000	7,204.506 9	7,204.506 9	1.9499	0.0000	7,226.578 3
2019	48.8567	33.0122	33.4718	0.0786	3.5260	1.5151	5.0411	0.9462	1.4330	2.3792	0.0000	7,870.034 9	7,870.034 9	0.8990	0.0000	7,892.509 8
Maximum	48.8567	59.5890	35.8062	0.0786	8.2777	2.6349	10.8556	4.5080	2.4241	6.8798	0.0000	7,870.034 9	7,870.034 9	1.9499	0.0000	7,892.509 8

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	45.71	0.00	38.46	50.03	0.00	37.10	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Area	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614
Energy	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Mobile	4.4097	17.3413	52.2343	0.1433	12.1547	0.1842	12.3389	3.2514	0.1737	3.4251		14,455.36 29	14,455.36 29	0.6589		14,471.83 58
Total	13.6682	18.4110	75.6910	0.1496	12.1547	0.3756	12.5303	3.2514	0.3651	3.6165	0.0000	15,520.76 07	15,520.76 07	0.7195	0.0188	15,544.34 15

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/d	day		
Area	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614
Energy	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Mobile	4.4097	17.3413	52.2343	0.1433	12.1547	0.1842	12.3389	3.2514	0.1737	3.4251		14,455.36 29	14,455.36 29	0.6589		14,471.83 58
Total	13.6682	18.4110	75.6910	0.1496	12.1547	0.3756	12.5303	3.2514	0.3651	3.6165	0.0000	15,520.76 07	15,520.76 07	0.7195	0.0188	15,544.34 15

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Demolition	Demolition	6/4/2018	6/29/2018	5	20	
2	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	7/2/2018	7/13/2018	5	10	
3	Grading	Grading	7/16/2018	8/10/2018	5	20	
4	Building Construction	Building Construction	8/13/2018	6/28/2019	5	230	
5	Paving	Paving	7/1/2019	7/26/2019	5	20	
6	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	2/28/2019	8/14/2019	5	120	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 5.27

Acres of Paving: 5.8

Residential Indoor: 562,950; Residential Outdoor: 187,650; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 15,456 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48
Demolition	Excavators	3	8.00	158	0.38
Demolition	Concrete/Industrial Saws	1	8.00	81	0.73
Grading	Excavators	2	8.00	158	0.38
Building Construction	Cranes	1	7.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	3	8.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Paving	Pavers	2	8.00	130	0.42
Paving	Rollers	2	8.00	80	0.38
Demolition	Rubber Tired Dozers	2	8.00	247	0.40
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	8.00	247	0.40
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	3	7.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	2	8.00	97	0.37
Paving	Paving Equipment	2	8.00	132	0.36
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	4	8.00	97	0.37
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	3	8.00	247	0.40
Grading	Scrapers	2	8.00	367	0.48
Building Construction	Welders	1	8.00	46	0.45

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Demolition	6	15.00	0.00	317.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Site Preparation	7	18.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	8	20.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	9	308.00	72.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	6	15.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	62.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Demolition - 2018

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					3.5066	0.0000	3.5066	0.5310	0.0000	0.5310			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388		1.9386	1.9386		1.8048	1.8048		3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4
Total	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388	3.5066	1.9386	5.4452	0.5310	1.8048	2.3358		3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4

Page 10 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.2 Demolition - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.1585	5.3149	1.2259	0.0125	0.2759	0.0335	0.3095	0.0755	0.0321	0.1076		1,364.154 1	1,364.154 1	0.1106		1,366.919 5
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0669	0.0504	0.5376	1.2400e- 003	0.1232	8.7000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	8.0000e- 004	0.0335		123.0860	123.0860	4.4300e- 003		123.1967
Total	0.2255	5.3652	1.7635	0.0138	0.3991	0.0344	0.4336	0.1082	0.0329	0.1411		1,487.240 1	1,487.240 1	0.1151		1,490.116 2

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust					1.5780	0.0000	1.5780	0.2389	0.0000	0.2389		- - - - -	0.0000		- - - -	0.0000
Off-Road	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388		1.9386	1.9386		1.8048	1.8048	0.0000	3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4
Total	3.7190	38.3225	22.3040	0.0388	1.5780	1.9386	3.5165	0.2389	1.8048	2.0438	0.0000	3,871.766 5	3,871.766 5	1.0667		3,898.434 4

3.2 Demolition - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.1585	5.3149	1.2259	0.0125	0.2759	0.0335	0.3095	0.0755	0.0321	0.1076		1,364.154 1	1,364.154 1	0.1106		1,366.919 5
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0669	0.0504	0.5376	1.2400e- 003	0.1232	8.7000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	8.0000e- 004	0.0335		123.0860	123.0860	4.4300e- 003		123.1967
Total	0.2255	5.3652	1.7635	0.0138	0.3991	0.0344	0.4336	0.1082	0.0329	0.1411		1,487.240 1	1,487.240 1	0.1151		1,490.116 2

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					18.0663	0.0000	18.0663	9.9307	0.0000	9.9307			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380		2.5769	2.5769		2.3708	2.3708		3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8
Total	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380	18.0663	2.5769	20.6432	9.9307	2.3708	12.3014		3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8

Page 12 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0803	0.0604	0.6451	1.4800e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		147.7032	147.7032	5.3100e- 003		147.8361
Total	0.0803	0.0604	0.6451	1.4800e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		147.7032	147.7032	5.3100e- 003		147.8361

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Fugitive Dust					8.1298	0.0000	8.1298	4.4688	0.0000	4.4688			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380		2.5769	2.5769		2.3708	2.3708	0.0000	3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8
Total	4.5627	48.1988	22.4763	0.0380	8.1298	2.5769	10.7067	4.4688	2.3708	6.8396	0.0000	3,831.623 9	3,831.623 9	1.1928		3,861.444 8

Page 13 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0803	0.0604	0.6451	1.4800e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		147.7032	147.7032	5.3100e- 003		147.8361
Total	0.0803	0.0604	0.6451	1.4800e- 003	0.1479	1.0400e- 003	0.1489	0.0392	9.6000e- 004	0.0402		147.7032	147.7032	5.3100e- 003		147.8361

3.4 Grading - 2018

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					6.3015	0.0000	6.3015	3.3404	0.0000	3.3404			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620		2.6337	2.6337		2.4230	2.4230		6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8
Total	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620	6.3015	2.6337	8.9353	3.3404	2.4230	5.7634		6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8

Page 14 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Grading - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0892	0.0672	0.7168	1.6500e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		164.1147	164.1147	5.9000e- 003		164.2623
Total	0.0892	0.0672	0.7168	1.6500e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		164.1147	164.1147	5.9000e- 003		164.2623

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Fugitive Dust					2.8357	0.0000	2.8357	1.5032	0.0000	1.5032			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620		2.6337	2.6337		2.4230	2.4230	0.0000	6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8
Total	5.0901	59.5218	35.0894	0.0620	2.8357	2.6337	5.4694	1.5032	2.4230	3.9262	0.0000	6,244.428 4	6,244.428 4	1.9440		6,293.027 8

Page 15 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.4 Grading - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category		<u> </u>			lb/	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0892	0.0672	0.7168	1.6500e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		164.1147	164.1147	5.9000e- 003		164.2623
Total	0.0892	0.0672	0.7168	1.6500e- 003	0.1643	1.1600e- 003	0.1655	0.0436	1.0700e- 003	0.0446		164.1147	164.1147	5.9000e- 003		164.2623

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099	-	2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3
Total	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099		2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3

Page 16 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/d	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.3868	9.5539	2.9140	0.0192	0.4865	0.0908	0.5773	0.1400	0.0868	0.2268		2,056.205 6	2,056.205 6	0.1498		2,059.950 4
Worker	1.3739	1.0343	11.0390	0.0254	2.5302	0.0178	2.5479	0.6711	0.0164	0.6875		2,527.366 2	2,527.366 2	0.0909		2,529.639 6
Total	1.7607	10.5881	13.9530	0.0446	3.0167	0.1085	3.1252	0.8111	0.1032	0.9144		4,583.571 8	4,583.571 8	0.2407		4,589.590 0

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099	0.0000	2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3
Total	2.6795	23.3900	17.5804	0.0269		1.4999	1.4999		1.4099	1.4099	0.0000	2,620.935 1	2,620.935 1	0.6421		2,636.988 3

Page 17 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.3868	9.5539	2.9140	0.0192	0.4865	0.0908	0.5773	0.1400	0.0868	0.2268		2,056.205 6	2,056.205 6	0.1498		2,059.950 4
Worker	1.3739	1.0343	11.0390	0.0254	2.5302	0.0178	2.5479	0.6711	0.0164	0.6875		2,527.366 2	2,527.366 2	0.0909		2,529.639 6
Total	1.7607	10.5881	13.9530	0.0446	3.0167	0.1085	3.1252	0.8111	0.1032	0.9144		4,583.571 8	4,583.571 8	0.2407		4,589.590 0

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/c	lay							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899		1.2127	1.2127		2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5
Total	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899		1.2127	1.2127		2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.3423	9.0047	2.6317	0.0191	0.4866	0.0755	0.5621	0.1400	0.0722	0.2122		2,045.580 6	2,045.580 6	0.1469		2,049.252 2
Worker	1.2516	0.9102	9.8518	0.0247	2.5302	0.0175	2.5476	0.6711	0.0161	0.6872		2,456.862 9	2,456.862 9	0.0808		2,458.882 0
Total	1.5938	9.9149	12.4835	0.0437	3.0167	0.0929	3.1097	0.8111	0.0883	0.8994		4,502.443 4	4,502.443 4	0.2276		4,508.134 2

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	day		
Off-Road	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899	1 1 1	1.2127	1.2127	0.0000	2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5
Total	2.3612	21.0788	17.1638	0.0269		1.2899	1.2899		1.2127	1.2127	0.0000	2,591.580 2	2,591.580 2	0.6313		2,607.363 5

Page 19 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.3423	9.0047	2.6317	0.0191	0.4866	0.0755	0.5621	0.1400	0.0722	0.2122		2,045.580 6	2,045.580 6	0.1469		2,049.252 2
Worker	1.2516	0.9102	9.8518	0.0247	2.5302	0.0175	2.5476	0.6711	0.0161	0.6872		2,456.862 9	2,456.862 9	0.0808		2,458.882 0
Total	1.5938	9.9149	12.4835	0.0437	3.0167	0.0929	3.1097	0.8111	0.0883	0.8994		4,502.443 4	4,502.443 4	0.2276		4,508.134 2

3.6 Paving - 2019

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	1.4544	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586		2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8
Paving	0.1087					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	1.5632	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586		2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8

Page 20 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.6 Paving - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0610	0.0443	0.4798	1.2000e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		119.6524	119.6524	3.9300e- 003		119.7508
Total	0.0610	0.0443	0.4798	1.2000e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		119.6524	119.6524	3.9300e- 003		119.7508

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Off-Road	1.4544	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586	0.0000	2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8
Paving	0.1087					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Total	1.5632	15.2441	14.6648	0.0228		0.8246	0.8246		0.7586	0.7586	0.0000	2,257.002 5	2,257.002 5	0.7141		2,274.854 8

Page 21 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

3.6 Paving - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	day		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.0610	0.0443	0.4798	1.2000e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		119.6524	119.6524	3.9300e- 003		119.7508
Total	0.0610	0.0443	0.4798	1.2000e- 003	0.1232	8.5000e- 004	0.1241	0.0327	7.8000e- 004	0.0335		119.6524	119.6524	3.9300e- 003		119.7508

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	44.3834					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2664	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288		281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423
Total	44.6498	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288		281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.2519	0.1832	1.9832	4.9700e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		494.5633	494.5633	0.0163		494.9698
Total	0.2519	0.1832	1.9832	4.9700e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		494.5633	494.5633	0.0163		494.9698

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/o	day							lb/c	lay		
Archit. Coating	44.3834					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Off-Road	0.2664	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423
Total	44.6498	1.8354	1.8413	2.9700e- 003		0.1288	0.1288		0.1288	0.1288	0.0000	281.4481	281.4481	0.0238		282.0423

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000
Worker	0.2519	0.1832	1.9832	4.9700e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		494.5633	494.5633	0.0163		494.9698
Total	0.2519	0.1832	1.9832	4.9700e- 003	0.5093	3.5100e- 003	0.5128	0.1351	3.2400e- 003	0.1383		494.5633	494.5633	0.0163		494.9698

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 24 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/d	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	4.4097	17.3413	52.2343	0.1433	12.1547	0.1842	12.3389	3.2514	0.1737	3.4251		14,455.36 29	14,455.36 29	0.6589		14,471.83 58
Unmitigated	4.4097	17.3413	52.2343	0.1433	12.1547	0.1842	12.3389	3.2514	0.1737	3.4251		14,455.36 29	14,455.36 29	0.6589		14,471.83 58

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Ave	rage Daily Trip Ra	ate	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
Apartments Mid Rise	2,034.96	2,034.96	2034.96	5,726,479	5,726,479
Enclosed Parking Structure	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	2,034.96	2,034.96	2,034.96	5,726,479	5,726,479

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
Apartments Mid Rise	10.80	7.30	7.50	37.50	15.00	47.50	86	11	3
Enclosed Parking Structure	9.50	7.30	7.30	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Parking Lot	9.50	7.30	7.30	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0

4.4 Fleet Mix

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 25 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
Apartments Mid Rise	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680
Enclosed Parking Structure	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680
Parking Lot	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2

Page 26 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					lb/e	day							lb/c	lay		
Apartments Mid Rise	8703.65	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr		lb/day											lb/c	lay		
Apartments Mid Rise	8.70365	0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0939	0.8021	0.3413	5.1200e- 003		0.0649	0.0649		0.0649	0.0649		1,023.959 4	1,023.959 4	0.0196	0.0188	1,030.044 2

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					lb/	day							lb/c	lay		
Mitigated	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614
Unmitigated	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/				lb/c	lay						
Architectural Coating	2.4123					0.0000	0.0000	1 1 1	0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	6.0404					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Hearth	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	0.7118	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265		41.4385	41.4385	0.0409		42.4614
Total	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614

Page 29 of 30

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Summer

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					lb/	day							lb/d	day		
Architectural Coating	2.4123					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Consumer Products	6.0404		, , , , ,			0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000			0.0000			0.0000
Hearth	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	0.7118	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265		41.4385	41.4385	0.0409		42.4614
Total	9.1646	0.2676	23.1153	1.2200e- 003		0.1265	0.1265		0.1265	0.1265	0.0000	41.4385	41.4385	0.0409	0.0000	42.4614

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment T	уре	Number	Hours/Day	Days/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type
<u>Boilers</u>						
Equipment Type	Number	Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type	
User Defined Equipment						
Equipment Type	Number					
11.0 Vegetation						

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project

South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses	Size	Metric	Lot Acreage	Floor Surface Area	Population
Enclosed Parking Structure	552.00	Space	4.97	220,800.00	0
Parking Lot	92.00	Space	0.83	36,800.00	0
Apartments Mid Rise	278.00	Dwelling Unit	5.87	278,000.00	795

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization	Urban	Wind Speed (m/s)	2.9	Precipitation Freq (Days)	37
Climate Zone	8			Operational Year	2019
Utility Company	Southern California Ediso	n			
CO2 Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	702.44	CH4 Intensity (lb/MWhr)	0.029	N2O Intensity (Ib/MWhr)	0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 2 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

Project Characteristics -

Land Use - Sf and lot acreage based on site plan

Construction Phase - Architectural coating extended to overlap with building phase.

Grading - Grading assumed to be balanced on site, and grading area estimated from site plan (5.87 acres)- area not graded (0.6 acres) = 5.27 acres

Demolition - Existing sf - 8,300 sf to remain = 69,700 sf

Architectural Coating - Per VCAOCD Rule 74.2

Vehicle Trips - Trip generation rate 7.32 per project traffic study by LSA dated May 2018.

Woodstoves - No hearths in apartments

Area Coating - Per VCAPCD Rule 74.2

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - Watering in compliance with VCAPCD per Rule 55

Waste Mitigation - Per AB 939- 50% diversion rate assumed

Table Name	Column Name	Default Value	New Value
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Nonresidential_Exterior	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Nonresidential_Interior	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Parking	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Residential_Exterior	250.00	150.00
tblArchitecturalCoating	EF_Residential_Interior	250.00	150.00
tblAreaCoating	Area_EF_Parking	250	150
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	20.00	120.00
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	300.00	230.00
tblConstructionPhase	NumDays	30.00	20.00
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	12/12/2019	8/14/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	10/17/2019	6/28/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	6/28/2018	6/29/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	8/23/2018	8/10/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	11/14/2019	7/26/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseEndDate	7/12/2018	7/13/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	11/15/2019	2/28/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	8/24/2018	8/13/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	6/1/2018	6/4/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	7/13/2018	7/16/2018
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	10/18/2019	7/1/2019
tblConstructionPhase	PhaseStartDate	6/29/2018	7/2/2018
tblGrading	AcresOfGrading	50.00	5.27
tblLandUse	LotAcreage	7.32	5.87
tblVehicleTrips	ST_TR	6.39	7.32
tblVehicleTrips	SU_TR	5.86	7.32
tblVehicleTrips	WD_TR	6.65	7.32

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction

Unmitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year	tons/yr												MT	/yr		
2018	0.3405	3.0058	2.3060	4.9200e- 003	0.3437	0.1402	0.4840	0.1302	0.1309	0.2611	0.0000	449.7082	449.7082	0.0744	0.0000	451.5683
2019	2.9677	2.2907	2.2879	5.2000e- 003	0.2215	0.1054	0.3269	0.0596	0.0995	0.1590	0.0000	471.6805	471.6805	0.0591	0.0000	473.1570
Maximum	2.9677	3.0058	2.3060	5.2000e- 003	0.3437	0.1402	0.4840	0.1302	0.1309	0.2611	0.0000	471.6805	471.6805	0.0744	0.0000	473.1570

Mitigated Construction

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Year	tons/yr												MT	/yr		
2018	0.3405	3.0058	2.3060	4.9200e- 003	0.2401	0.1402	0.3804	0.0816	0.1309	0.2125	0.0000	449.7079	449.7079	0.0744	0.0000	451.5681
2019	2.9677	2.2907	2.2879	5.2000e- 003	0.2215	0.1054	0.3269	0.0596	0.0995	0.1590	0.0000	471.6802	471.6802	0.0591	0.0000	473.1567
Maximum	2.9677	3.0058	2.3060	5.2000e- 003	0.2401	0.1402	0.3804	0.0816	0.1309	0.2125	0.0000	471.6802	471.6802	0.0744	0.0000	473.1567

	ROG	NOx	со	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio-CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N20	CO2e
Percent Reduction	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	18.33	0.00	12.78	25.61	0.00	11.57	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

Quarter	Start Date	End Date	Maximum Unmitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)	Maximum Mitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)
1	6-1-2018	8-31-2018	1.5311	1.5311
2	9-1-2018	11-30-2018	1.2572	1.2572
3	12-1-2018	2-28-2019	1.1902	1.1902
4	3-1-2019	5-31-2019	2.6945	2.6945
5	6-1-2019	8-31-2019	1.7633	1.7633
		Highest	2.6945	2.6945

2.2 Overall Operational

Unmitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	7/yr		
Area	1.6067	0.0241	2.0804	1.1000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114		0.0114	0.0114	0.0000	3.3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668
Energy	0.0171	0.1464	0.0623	9.3000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118		0.0118	0.0118	0.0000	924.6446	924.6446	0.0344	9.5600e- 003	928.3535
Mobile	0.7702	3.3043	9.5461	0.0253	2.1642	0.0336	2.1978	0.5800	0.0317	0.6117	0.0000	2,315.739 3	2,315.739 3	0.1089	0.0000	2,318.462 2
Waste	F;					0.0000	0.0000	1 1 1 1 1	0.0000	0.0000	25.9585	0.0000	25.9585	1.5341	0.0000	64.3111
Water	7,			,		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	5.7464	43.9617	49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735
Total	2.3941	3.4748	11.6887	0.0263	2.1642	0.0569	2.2210	0.5800	0.0549	0.6349	31.7048	3,287.728 9	3,319.433 8	2.2728	0.0239	3,383.367 0

2.2 Overall Operational

Mitigated Operational

	ROG	NOx	CC) S	802	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugit PM2		aust 12.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- C	:O2 NBi	o- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category						tc	ns/yr									M	ſ/yr		
Area	1.6067	0.0241	2.08		000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114		0.0	114	0.0114	0.00	00 3	3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668
Energy	0.0171	0.1464	0.06		000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118		0.0	118	0.0118	0.00	00 92 [,]	4.6446	924.6446	0.0344	9.5600e- 003	928.3535
Mobile	0.7702	3.3043	9.54	61 0.0	0253	2.1642	0.0336	2.1978	0.58	800 0.0	317	0.6117	0.00	00 2,3	15.739 3	2,315.739 3	0.1089	0.0000	2,318.462 2
Waste	F,						0.0000	0.0000		0.0	000	0.0000	12.97	92 0	0000	12.9792	0.7671	0.0000	32.1555
Water	F,	 - - - -					0.0000	0.0000		0.0	000	0.0000	5.74	64 43	.9617	49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735
Total	2.3941	3.4748	11.68	387 0.0	0263	2.1642	0.0569	2.2210	0.58	800 0.0	549	0.6349	18.72	56 3,2	87.728 9	3,306.454 5	1.5058	0.0239	3,351.211 5
	ROG		NOx	со	SO				M10 Fotal	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhau PM2		12.5 otal	Bio- CO2	NBio-	CO2 Total	CO2 C	H4 N	20 CO26
Percent Reduction	0.00		0.00	0.00	0.0	00).00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0 0	.00	40.94	0.0	0 0.3	9 33	.75 0	.00 0.95

3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase Number	Phase Name	Phase Type	Start Date	End Date	Num Days Week	Num Days	Phase Description
1	Demolition	Demolition	6/4/2018	6/29/2018	5	20	
2	Site Preparation	Site Preparation	7/2/2018	7/13/2018	5	10	
3	Grading	Grading	7/16/2018	8/10/2018	5	20	
4	Building Construction	Building Construction	8/13/2018	6/28/2019	5	230	
5	Paving	Paving	7/1/2019	7/26/2019	5	20	
6	Architectural Coating	Architectural Coating	2/28/2019	8/14/2019	5	120	

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 5.27

Acres of Paving: 5.8

Residential Indoor: 562,950; Residential Outdoor: 187,650; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 15,456 (Architectural Coating – sqft)

OffRoad Equipment

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Type	Amount	Usage Hours	Horse Power	Load Factor
Architectural Coating	Air Compressors	1	6.00	78	0.48
Demolition	Excavators	3	8.00	158	0.38
Demolition	Concrete/Industrial Saws	1	8.00	81	0.73
Grading	Excavators	2	8.00	158	0.38
Building Construction	Cranes	1	7.00	231	0.29
Building Construction	Forklifts	3	8.00	89	0.20
Building Construction	Generator Sets	1	8.00	84	0.74
Paving	Pavers	2	8.00	130	0.42
Paving	Rollers	2	8.00	80	0.38
Demolition	Rubber Tired Dozers	2	8.00	247	0.40
Grading	Rubber Tired Dozers	1	8.00	247	0.40
Building Construction	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	3	7.00	97	0.37
Grading	Graders	1	8.00	187	0.41
Grading	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	2	8.00	97	0.37
Paving	Paving Equipment	2	8.00	132	0.36
Site Preparation	Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes	4	8.00	97	0.37
Site Preparation	Rubber Tired Dozers	3	8.00	247	0.40
Grading	Scrapers	2	8.00	367	0.48
Building Construction	Welders	1	8.00	46	0.45

Trips and VMT

Phase Name	Offroad Equipment Count	Worker Trip Number	Vendor Trip Number	Hauling Trip Number	Worker Trip Length	Vendor Trip Length	Hauling Trip Length	Worker Vehicle Class	Vendor Vehicle Class	Hauling Vehicle Class
Demolition	6	15.00	0.00	317.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Site Preparation	7	18.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Grading	8	20.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Building Construction	9	308.00	72.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Paving	6	15.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT
Architectural Coating	1	62.00	0.00	0.00	10.80	7.30	20.00	LD_Mix	HDT_Mix	HHDT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Water Exposed Area

3.2 Demolition - 2018

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Fugitive Dust					0.0351	0.0000	0.0351	5.3100e- 003	0.0000	5.3100e- 003	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0372	0.3832	0.2230	3.9000e- 004		0.0194	0.0194		0.0181	0.0181	0.0000	35.1241	35.1241	9.6800e- 003	0.0000	35.3660
Total	0.0372	0.3832	0.2230	3.9000e- 004	0.0351	0.0194	0.0545	5.3100e- 003	0.0181	0.0234	0.0000	35.1241	35.1241	9.6800e- 003	0.0000	35.3660

3.2 Demolition - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Hauling	1.6100e- 003	0.0544	0.0126	1.2000e- 004	2.7100e- 003	3.4000e- 004	3.0400e- 003	7.4000e- 004	3.2000e- 004	1.0700e- 003	0.0000	12.3026	12.3026	1.0200e- 003	0.0000	12.3281
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	6.8000e- 004	5.7000e- 004	5.2900e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	3.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	1.0771	1.0771	4.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.0781
Total	2.2900e- 003	0.0550	0.0179	1.3000e- 004	3.9200e- 003	3.5000e- 004	4.2500e- 003	1.0600e- 003	3.3000e- 004	1.4000e- 003	0.0000	13.3797	13.3797	1.0600e- 003	0.0000	13.4061

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Fugitive Dust					0.0158	0.0000	0.0158	2.3900e- 003	0.0000	2.3900e- 003	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0372	0.3832	0.2230	3.9000e- 004		0.0194	0.0194	 - - - -	0.0181	0.0181	0.0000	35.1240	35.1240	9.6800e- 003	0.0000	35.3660
Total	0.0372	0.3832	0.2230	3.9000e- 004	0.0158	0.0194	0.0352	2.3900e- 003	0.0181	0.0204	0.0000	35.1240	35.1240	9.6800e- 003	0.0000	35.3660

Page 11 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.2 Demolition - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	1.6100e- 003	0.0544	0.0126	1.2000e- 004	2.7100e- 003	3.4000e- 004	3.0400e- 003	7.4000e- 004	3.2000e- 004	1.0700e- 003	0.0000	12.3026	12.3026	1.0200e- 003	0.0000	12.3281
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	6.8000e- 004	5.7000e- 004	5.2900e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	3.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	1.0771	1.0771	4.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.0781
Total	2.2900e- 003	0.0550	0.0179	1.3000e- 004	3.9200e- 003	3.5000e- 004	4.2500e- 003	1.0600e- 003	3.3000e- 004	1.4000e- 003	0.0000	13.3797	13.3797	1.0600e- 003	0.0000	13.4061

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Fugitive Dust					0.0903	0.0000	0.0903	0.0497	0.0000	0.0497	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0228	0.2410	0.1124	1.9000e- 004		0.0129	0.0129		0.0119	0.0119	0.0000	17.3800	17.3800	5.4100e- 003	0.0000	17.5152
Total	0.0228	0.2410	0.1124	1.9000e- 004	0.0903	0.0129	0.1032	0.0497	0.0119	0.0615	0.0000	17.3800	17.3800	5.4100e- 003	0.0000	17.5152

Page 12 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	4.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004	3.1700e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.3000e- 004	1.9000e- 004	0.0000	2.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.6463	0.6463	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6468
Total	4.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004	3.1700e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.3000e- 004	1.9000e- 004	0.0000	2.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.6463	0.6463	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6468

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	tons/yr									MT/yr						
Fugitive Dust					0.0407	0.0000	0.0407	0.0223	0.0000	0.0223	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0228	0.2410	0.1124	1.9000e- 004		0.0129	0.0129		0.0119	0.0119	0.0000	17.3799	17.3799	5.4100e- 003	0.0000	17.5152
Total	0.0228	0.2410	0.1124	1.9000e- 004	0.0407	0.0129	0.0535	0.0223	0.0119	0.0342	0.0000	17.3799	17.3799	5.4100e- 003	0.0000	17.5152

3.3 Site Preparation - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	tons/yr									MT/yr						
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	4.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004	3.1700e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.3000e- 004	1.9000e- 004	0.0000	2.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.6463	0.6463	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6468
Total	4.1000e- 004	3.4000e- 004	3.1700e- 003	1.0000e- 005	7.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	7.3000e- 004	1.9000e- 004	0.0000	2.0000e- 004	0.0000	0.6463	0.6463	2.0000e- 005	0.0000	0.6468

3.4 Grading - 2018

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category	tons/yr									MT/yr						
Fugitive Dust					0.0630	0.0000	0.0630	0.0334	0.0000	0.0334	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0509	0.5952	0.3509	6.2000e- 004		0.0263	0.0263		0.0242	0.0242	0.0000	56.6485	56.6485	0.0176	0.0000	57.0894
Total	0.0509	0.5952	0.3509	6.2000e- 004	0.0630	0.0263	0.0894	0.0334	0.0242	0.0576	0.0000	56.6485	56.6485	0.0176	0.0000	57.0894

Page 14 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.4 Grading - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	9.1000e- 004	7.5000e- 004	7.0600e- 003	2.0000e- 005	1.6100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.6200e- 003	4.3000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	1.4361	1.4361	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.4374
Total	9.1000e- 004	7.5000e- 004	7.0600e- 003	2.0000e- 005	1.6100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.6200e- 003	4.3000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	1.4361	1.4361	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.4374

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	∵/yr		
Fugitive Dust					0.0284	0.0000	0.0284	0.0150	0.0000	0.0150	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0509	0.5952	0.3509	6.2000e- 004		0.0263	0.0263		0.0242	0.0242	0.0000	56.6484	56.6484	0.0176	0.0000	57.0893
Total	0.0509	0.5952	0.3509	6.2000e- 004	0.0284	0.0263	0.0547	0.0150	0.0242	0.0393	0.0000	56.6484	56.6484	0.0176	0.0000	57.0893

Page 15 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.4 Grading - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr		<u>.</u>		_			МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	9.1000e- 004	7.5000e- 004	7.0600e- 003	2.0000e- 005	1.6100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.6200e- 003	4.3000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	1.4361	1.4361	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.4374
Total	9.1000e- 004	7.5000e- 004	7.0600e- 003	2.0000e- 005	1.6100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.6200e- 003	4.3000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	4.4000e- 004	0.0000	1.4361	1.4361	5.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.4374

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	0.1353	1.1812	0.8878	1.3600e- 003		0.0757	0.0757		0.0712	0.0712	0.0000	120.0725	120.0725	0.0294	0.0000	120.8079
Total	0.1353	1.1812	0.8878	1.3600e- 003		0.0757	0.0757		0.0712	0.0712	0.0000	120.0725	120.0725	0.0294	0.0000	120.8079

Page 16 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton			МТ	/yr							
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0200	0.4904	0.1550	9.6000e- 004	0.0241	4.6200e- 003	0.0288	6.9600e- 003	4.4200e- 003	0.0114	0.0000	93.3343	93.3343	7.0400e- 003	0.0000	93.5104
Worker	0.0707	0.0587	0.5487	1.2400e- 003	0.1250	9.0000e- 004	0.1259	0.0332	8.3000e- 004	0.0340	0.0000	111.6869	111.6869	4.0900e- 003	0.0000	111.7891
Total	0.0907	0.5491	0.7037	2.2000e- 003	0.1491	5.5200e- 003	0.1546	0.0402	5.2500e- 003	0.0454	0.0000	205.0211	205.0211	0.0111	0.0000	205.2994

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	0.1353	1.1812	0.8878	1.3600e- 003		0.0757	0.0757	1 1 1	0.0712	0.0712	0.0000	120.0723	120.0723	0.0294	0.0000	120.8078
Total	0.1353	1.1812	0.8878	1.3600e- 003		0.0757	0.0757		0.0712	0.0712	0.0000	120.0723	120.0723	0.0294	0.0000	120.8078

Page 17 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.5 Building Construction - 2018

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0200	0.4904	0.1550	9.6000e- 004	0.0241	4.6200e- 003	0.0288	6.9600e- 003	4.4200e- 003	0.0114	0.0000	93.3343	93.3343	7.0400e- 003	0.0000	93.5104
Worker	0.0707	0.0587	0.5487	1.2400e- 003	0.1250	9.0000e- 004	0.1259	0.0332	8.3000e- 004	0.0340	0.0000	111.6869	111.6869	4.0900e- 003	0.0000	111.7891
Total	0.0907	0.5491	0.7037	2.2000e- 003	0.1491	5.5200e- 003	0.1546	0.0402	5.2500e- 003	0.0454	0.0000	205.0211	205.0211	0.0111	0.0000	205.2994

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	0.1523	1.3596	1.1071	1.7400e- 003		0.0832	0.0832		0.0782	0.0782	0.0000	151.6422	151.6422	0.0369	0.0000	152.5657
Total	0.1523	1.3596	1.1071	1.7400e- 003		0.0832	0.0832		0.0782	0.0782	0.0000	151.6422	151.6422	0.0369	0.0000	152.5657

Page 18 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr				МТ	/yr					
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0225	0.5897	0.1789	1.2200e- 003	0.0308	4.9200e- 003	0.0357	8.8900e- 003	4.7000e- 003	0.0136	0.0000	118.5712	118.5712	8.8200e- 003	0.0000	118.7916
Worker	0.0822	0.0660	0.6234	1.5400e- 003	0.1596	1.1300e- 003	0.1607	0.0424	1.0400e- 003	0.0434	0.0000	138.6606	138.6606	4.6300e- 003	0.0000	138.7763
Total	0.1048	0.6557	0.8023	2.7600e- 003	0.1904	6.0500e- 003	0.1965	0.0513	5.7400e- 003	0.0570	0.0000	257.2318	257.2318	0.0135	0.0000	257.5679

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	0.1523	1.3596	1.1071	1.7400e- 003		0.0832	0.0832	1 1 1	0.0782	0.0782	0.0000	151.6420	151.6420	0.0369	0.0000	152.5656
Total	0.1523	1.3596	1.1071	1.7400e- 003		0.0832	0.0832		0.0782	0.0782	0.0000	151.6420	151.6420	0.0369	0.0000	152.5656

Page 19 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

3.5 Building Construction - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	'/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0225	0.5897	0.1789	1.2200e- 003	0.0308	4.9200e- 003	0.0357	8.8900e- 003	4.7000e- 003	0.0136	0.0000	118.5712	118.5712	8.8200e- 003	0.0000	118.7916
Worker	0.0822	0.0660	0.6234	1.5400e- 003	0.1596	1.1300e- 003	0.1607	0.0424	1.0400e- 003	0.0434	0.0000	138.6606	138.6606	4.6300e- 003	0.0000	138.7763
Total	0.1048	0.6557	0.8023	2.7600e- 003	0.1904	6.0500e- 003	0.1965	0.0513	5.7400e- 003	0.0570	0.0000	257.2318	257.2318	0.0135	0.0000	257.5679

3.6 Paving - 2019

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Off-Road	0.0145	0.1524	0.1467	2.3000e- 004		8.2500e- 003	8.2500e- 003		7.5900e- 003	7.5900e- 003	0.0000	20.4752	20.4752	6.4800e- 003	0.0000	20.6371
Paving	1.0900e- 003					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	0.0156	0.1524	0.1467	2.3000e- 004		8.2500e- 003	8.2500e- 003		7.5900e- 003	7.5900e- 003	0.0000	20.4752	20.4752	6.4800e- 003	0.0000	20.6371

3.6 Paving - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	6.2000e- 004	5.0000e- 004	4.7100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	3.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	1.0470	1.0470	3.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.0478
Total	6.2000e- 004	5.0000e- 004	4.7100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	3.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	1.0470	1.0470	3.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.0478

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	ſ/yr		
Off-Road	0.0145	0.1524	0.1467	2.3000e- 004		8.2500e- 003	8.2500e- 003		7.5900e- 003	7.5900e- 003	0.0000	20.4752	20.4752	6.4800e- 003	0.0000	20.6371
Paving	1.0900e- 003					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total	0.0156	0.1524	0.1467	2.3000e- 004		8.2500e- 003	8.2500e- 003		7.5900e- 003	7.5900e- 003	0.0000	20.4752	20.4752	6.4800e- 003	0.0000	20.6371

3.6 Paving - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	'/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	6.2000e- 004	5.0000e- 004	4.7100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	3.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	1.0470	1.0470	3.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.0478
Total	6.2000e- 004	5.0000e- 004	4.7100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	1.0000e- 005	1.2100e- 003	3.2000e- 004	1.0000e- 005	3.3000e- 004	0.0000	1.0470	1.0470	3.0000e- 005	0.0000	1.0478

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Archit. Coating	2.6630					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0160	0.1101	0.1105	1.8000e- 004		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003	0.0000	15.3195	15.3195	1.2900e- 003	0.0000	15.3519
Total	2.6790	0.1101	0.1105	1.8000e- 004		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003	0.0000	15.3195	15.3195	1.2900e- 003	0.0000	15.3519

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	0.0154	0.0124	0.1167	2.9000e- 004	0.0299	2.1000e- 004	0.0301	7.9400e- 003	1.9000e- 004	8.1300e- 003	0.0000	25.9648	25.9648	8.7000e- 004	0.0000	25.9865
Total	0.0154	0.0124	0.1167	2.9000e- 004	0.0299	2.1000e- 004	0.0301	7.9400e- 003	1.9000e- 004	8.1300e- 003	0.0000	25.9648	25.9648	8.7000e- 004	0.0000	25.9865

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Archit. Coating	2.6630					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Off-Road	0.0160	0.1101	0.1105	1.8000e- 004		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003	0.0000	15.3195	15.3195	1.2900e- 003	0.0000	15.3519
Total	2.6790	0.1101	0.1105	1.8000e- 004		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003		7.7300e- 003	7.7300e- 003	0.0000	15.3195	15.3195	1.2900e- 003	0.0000	15.3519

3.7 Architectural Coating - 2019

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

	ROG	NOx	СО	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Hauling	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Vendor	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Worker	0.0154	0.0124	0.1167	2.9000e- 004	0.0299	2.1000e- 004	0.0301	7.9400e- 003	1.9000e- 004	8.1300e- 003	0.0000	25.9648	25.9648	8.7000e- 004	0.0000	25.9865
Total	0.0154	0.0124	0.1167	2.9000e- 004	0.0299	2.1000e- 004	0.0301	7.9400e- 003	1.9000e- 004	8.1300e- 003	0.0000	25.9648	25.9648	8.7000e- 004	0.0000	25.9865

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

Page 24 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Mitigated	0.7702	3.3043	9.5461	0.0253	2.1642	0.0336	2.1978	0.5800	0.0317	0.6117	0.0000	2,315.739 3	2,315.739 3	0.1089	0.0000	2,318.462 2
Unmitigated	0.7702	3.3043	9.5461	0.0253	2.1642	0.0336	2.1978	0.5800	0.0317	0.6117	0.0000	2,315.739 3	2,315.739 3	0.1089	0.0000	2,318.462 2

4.2 Trip Summary Information

	Ave	rage Daily Trip Ra	ate	Unmitigated	Mitigated
Land Use	Weekday	Saturday	Sunday	Annual VMT	Annual VMT
Apartments Mid Rise	2,034.96	2,034.96	2034.96	5,726,479	5,726,479
Enclosed Parking Structure	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Parking Lot	0.00	0.00	0.00		
Total	2,034.96	2,034.96	2,034.96	5,726,479	5,726,479

4.3 Trip Type Information

		Miles			Trip %			Trip Purpos	e %
Land Use	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	H-W or C-W	H-S or C-C	H-O or C-NW	Primary	Diverted	Pass-by
Apartments Mid Rise	10.80	7.30	7.50	37.50	15.00	47.50	86	11	3
Enclosed Parking Structure	9.50	7.30	7.30	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0
Parking Lot	9.50	7.30	7.30	0.00	0.00	0.00	0	0	0

4.4 Fleet Mix

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2

Page 25 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

Land Use	LDA	LDT1	LDT2	MDV	LHD1	LHD2	MHD	HHD	OBUS	UBUS	MCY	SBUS	MH
Apartments Mid Rise	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680
Enclosed Parking Structure	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680
Parking Lot	0.558784	0.038403	0.196194	0.127408	0.025945	0.006940	0.017030	0.017744	0.001862	0.001508	0.005365	0.001136	0.001680

5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use: N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	'/yr		
Electricity Mitigated						0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	755.1167	755.1167	0.0312	6.4500e- 003	757.8181
Electricity Unmitigated						0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	755.1167	755.1167	0.0312	6.4500e- 003	757.8181
NaturalGas Mitigated	0.0171	0.1464	0.0623	9.3000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118		0.0118	0.0118	0.0000	169.5280	169.5280	3.2500e- 003	3.1100e- 003	170.5354
NaturalGas Unmitigated	0.0171	0.1464	0.0623	9.3000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118	 , , ,	0.0118	0.0118	0.0000	169.5280	169.5280	3.2500e- 003	3.1100e- 003	170.5354

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Apartments Mid Rise	3.17683e +006	0.0171	0.1464	0.0623	9.3000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118		0.0118	0.0118	0.0000	169.5280	169.5280	3.2500e- 003	3.1100e- 003	170.5354
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0171	0.1464	0.0623	9.3000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118		0.0118	0.0118	0.0000	169.5280	169.5280	3.2500e- 003	3.1100e- 003	170.5354

Mitigated

	NaturalGa s Use	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kBTU/yr					ton	s/yr		<u>.</u>	-				МТ	/yr		
Apartments Mid Rise	3.17683e +006	0.0171	0.1464	0.0623	9.3000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118		0.0118	0.0118	0.0000	169.5280	169.5280	3.2500e- 003	3.1100e- 003	170.5354
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	1	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		0.0171	0.1464	0.0623	9.3000e- 004		0.0118	0.0118		0.0118	0.0118	0.0000	169.5280	169.5280	3.2500e- 003	3.1100e- 003	170.5354

Page 27 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

5.3 Energy by Land Use - Electricity

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	Electricity Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kWh/yr		MT	7/yr	
Apartments Mid Rise	1.10513e +006	352.1192	0.0145	3.0100e- 003	353.3789
Enclosed Parking Structure	1.25194e +006	398.8936	0.0165	3.4100e- 003	400.3207
Parking Lot	12880	4.1038	1.7000e- 004	4.0000e- 005	4.1185
Total		755.1167	0.0312	6.4600e- 003	757.8181

Mitigated

	Electricity Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	kWh/yr		ΜT	7/yr	
Apartments Mid Rise	1.10513e +006	352.1192	0.0145	3.0100e- 003	353.3789
Enclosed Parking Structure	1.25194e +006	398.8936	0.0165	3.4100e- 003	400.3207
Parking Lot	12880	4.1038	1.7000e- 004	4.0000e- 005	4.1185
Total		755.1167	0.0312	6.4600e- 003	757.8181

6.0 Area Detail

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Mitigated	1.6067	0.0241	2.0804	1.1000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114		0.0114	0.0114	0.0000	3.3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668
Unmitigated	1.6067	0.0241	2.0804	1.1000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114	r 1 1 1 1	0.0114	0.0114	0.0000	3.3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668

6.2 Area by SubCategory

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					ton	s/yr							MT	/yr		
Architectural Coating	0.4403		1 1 1			0.0000	0.0000	1 1 1	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Products	1.1024					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hearth	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	0.0641	0.0241	2.0804	1.1000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114		0.0114	0.0114	0.0000	3.3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668
Total	1.6067	0.0241	2.0804	1.1000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114		0.0114	0.0114	0.0000	3.3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668

Page 30 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

6.2 Area by SubCategory

Mitigated

	ROG	NOx	CO	SO2	Fugitive PM10	Exhaust PM10	PM10 Total	Fugitive PM2.5	Exhaust PM2.5	PM2.5 Total	Bio- CO2	NBio- CO2	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
SubCategory					ton	s/yr							МТ	/yr		
Architectural Coating	0.4403					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Consumer Products	1.1024					0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Hearth	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000		0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Landscaping	0.0641	0.0241	2.0804	1.1000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114		0.0114	0.0114	0.0000	3.3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668
Total	1.6067	0.0241	2.0804	1.1000e- 004		0.0114	0.0114		0.0114	0.0114	0.0000	3.3833	3.3833	3.3400e- 003	0.0000	3.4668

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

Page 31 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Category		MT	/yr	
	49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735
Guinigatou	49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735

7.2 Water by Land Use

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	Indoor/Out door Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	Mgal		МТ	7/yr	
Apartments Mid Rise	18.1128 / 11.419	49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735
Enclosed Parking Structure	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735

Page 32 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

7.2 Water by Land Use

Mitigated

	Indoor/Out door Use	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	Mgal		МТ	/yr	
Apartments Mid Rise	18.1128 / 11.419	49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735
Enclosed Parking Structure	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0/0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		49.7081	0.5920	0.0143	68.7735

8.0 Waste Detail

8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

Institute Recycling and Composting Services

Page 33 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

Category/Year

	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e				
	MT/yr							
Willigutou	12.9792	0.7671	0.0000	32.1555				
ernnigatou		1.5341	0.0000	64.3111				

8.2 Waste by Land Use

<u>Unmitigated</u>

	Waste Disposed	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	tons		МТ	/yr	
Apartments Mid Rise	127.88	25.9585	1.5341	0.0000	64.3111
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		25.9585	1.5341	0.0000	64.3111

Page 34 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

8.2 Waste by Land Use

Mitigated

	Waste Disposed	Total CO2	CH4	N2O	CO2e
Land Use	tons		МТ	/yr	
Apartments Mid Rise	63.94	12.9792	0.7671	0.0000	32.1555
Enclosed Parking Structure	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Parking Lot	0	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000
Total		12.9792	0.7671	0.0000	32.1555

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Days/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Equipment Type	Number	Hours/Day	Hours/Year	Horse Power	Load Factor	Fuel Type

<u>Boilers</u>

Equipment Type	Number Heat Input/Day	Heat Input/Year	Boiler Rating	Fuel Type
----------------	-----------------------	-----------------	---------------	-----------

User Defined Equipment

Equipment Type N

Number

Page 35 of 35

Alamo Street Mixed Use Project - South Central Coast Air Basin, Annual

11.0 Vegetation

Greenhouse Gas Emission Worksheet N20 Mobile Emissions

Tapo/Alamo Development

From CalEEMod Vehicle Fleet Mix Output:

Annual VMT:

N20 CH4 N2O Emission Percent CH4 Emission Emission Factor Emission (g/mile)** Factor (g/mile)* (g/mile)** Vehicle Type (g/mile)* Туре Light Auto 54.7% 0.04 0.0218877 0.04 0.021888 Light Truck < 3750 lbs 4.5% 0.05 0.0022589 0.06 0.002711 Light Truck 3751-5750 lbs 20.3% 0.05 0.0101372 0.06 0.012165 Med Truck 5751-8500 lbs 12.2% 0.12 0.0145812 0.2 0.024302 Lite-Heavy Truck 8501-10,000 lbs 0.12 0.0019376 0.2 0.003229 1.6% Lite-Heavy Truck 10,001-14,000 lbs 0.6% 0.09 0.0005529 0.125 0.000768 Med-Heavy Truck 14,001-33,000 lbs 0.06 0.0011846 0.05 0.000987 2.0% Heavy-Heavy Truck 33,001-60,000 lbs 3.0% 0.06 0.0017967 0.05 0.001497 Other Bus 0.05 0.000124 0.2% 0.06 0.0001487 Urban Bus 0.05 0.000114 0.2% 0.06 0.0001362 Motorcycle 0.5% 0.09 0.000457 0.01 5.08E-05 School Bus 0.05 3.41E-05 0.1% 0.06 4.092E-05 Motor Home 0.1% 0.09 8.019E-05 0.125 0.000111 100.0% 0.0551997 0.06798 Total

5,726,479

Total Emissions (metric tons) =

Emission Factor by Vehicle Mix (g/mi) x Annual VMT(mi) x 0.000001 metric tons/g

Conversion to Carbon Dioxide Equivalency (CO2e) Units based on Global Warming Potential (GWP)

21 GWP

310 GWP 0.90718474 metric ton

Annual Mobile Emissions:

1 ton (short, US) =

	Total Emissie	ons	Total CO2e units
N20 Emissions:	0.3893	metric tons N2O	120.68 metric tons CO2e
		Project Total:	120.68 metric tons CO2e

References

CH4

N2O

* from Table C.4: Methane and Nitrous Oxide Emission Factors for Mobile Sources by Vehicle and Fuel Type (g/mile).

in California Climate Action Registry General Reporting Protocol, Reporting Entity-Wide Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Version 3.1, January 2009.

Assume Model year 2000-present, gasoline fueled.

** Source: California Climate Action Registry General Reporting Protocol, Reporting Entity-Wide Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Version 3.1, January 2009.